Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


Kenilworth School District No. 38 2:140

School Board

Communications To and From the Board

The School Board welcomes communications from the community. Staff members, parents, and
community members should submit questions or communications for the School Board’s
consideration to the Superintendent or may wuse the electronic link to the Board’s
listen@kenilworth38.org address that is posted on the District’s website. In accordance with the Open
Meetings Act and the Oath of Office taken by Board members, individual Board members will not (a)
reply to an email on behalf of the entire Board, or (b) engage in discussion of District business with a
majority of a quorum of the Board, except in the course of a properly noticed public meeting.

The Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Ensure that the home page for the District’s website contains an active electronic link to the
email address for the School Board, and

2. Provide the Board, such as in the Board meeting packet, with all emails that are received and
any feedback regarding them.

The Superintendent shall provide the Board with a summary of these questions or communications
and provide, as appropriate, his or her feedback regarding the matter. If contacted individually, Board
members will refer the inquiring or concerned party to the Superintendent or other appropriate
administrator, except in unusual situations. Board members’ questions or communications to staff or
about programs will be channeled through the Superintendent’s office. Board members will not take
individual action that might compromise the Board or District. Board members’ questions or
communications to staff or about programs will be channeled through the Superintendent’s office.
There is no expectation of privacy for any communication sent to the Board or its members, whether

sent bv Ietter emall or other means. Beeause%h&&setos«%opnon—dlselosuraet—publ%reeerds—rs

Board Member Use of Electronic Communications

For purposes of this section, electronic communications includes, without limitation, electronic mail,
electronic chat, instant messaging, texting, and any form of social networking. Electronic
communications among a ma|or|tv or more of a Board quorum shaII not be used for the purpose of
discussing District business.B
et—drseusang—arstnet—busmess—wmh—ene—anethePElectronlc communlcatlons among Board members
relating to District matters shall be limited to_(1) disseminating information, and (2) messages not
involving deliberation, debate, or decision-making. The following list contains examples of
permissible electronic communications::

Agenda item suggestions made to the Board President or Superintendent

Reminders about or messages for purposes of scheduling meetings

Disseminating Board meeting agendas or information concerning agenda items

Individual responses to questions posted by community members, subject to the other
limitations in this policy.

e o ¢ o

2:140 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 11/19/07

Revised 4/18/11

Revisions presented 02/09/15





LEGAL REF.: 5 ILCS 120/1 et seq.

CROSS REF-.: 2:220 (School Board Meeting Procedure), 3:30 (Chain of Command), 8:110
(Public Suggestions and Complaints)

2:140 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 11/19/07

Revised 4/18/11

Revisions presented 02/09/15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 2:140-E

School Board

Exhibit - Guidance for Board Member Communications, Including Email Use

The School Board is authorized to discuss District business only at a properly noticed Board meeting
(Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/1 et seq.). Other than during a Board meeting, a majority or more
of a Board quorum may not engage in contemporaneous interactive communication, whether in
person or electronically, to discuss District business. This Guidance assumes a Board has seven
members and covers issues arising from Board policy 2:140, Communications To and From the
Board.

Communications Between or Among Board Members and/or the Superintendent Outside of a
Properly Noticed Board Meeting

1. The Superintendent or designee is permitted to email information to Board members. For
example, the Superintendent may email Board meeting agendas and supporting information to
Board members. When responding to a single Board member’s request, the Superintendent
should copy all other Board members and include a “do not reply/forward” alert to the group,
such as: “BOARD MEMBER ALERT: This email is in response to a request. Do not reply
or forward to the group but only to the sender.”

2. Board members are permitted to discuss any matter except District business with each other,
whether in person or by telephone or email, regardless of the number of members participating in
the discussion. For example, they may discuss league sports, work, or current events.

3. Board members are permitted to provide information to each other, whether in person or by
telephone or email, that is non-deliberative and non-substantive. Examples of this type of
communication include scheduling meetings and confirming receipt of information.

4. A Board member is not permitted to discuss District business with more than one other Board
member at a time, whether in person or by telephone or email. Stated another way, a Board
member may discuss District business in person or by telephone or email with only one other
Board member at a time. However, a Board member should not facilitate interactive
communication by discussing District business in a series of visits with, or telephone calls or
emails to, Board members individually.

5. A Board member should include a “do not reply/forward” alert when emailing a message
concerning District business to more than one other Board member. The following is an example
of such an alert: “BOARD MEMBER ALERT: This email is not for interactive discussion
purposes. The recipient should not reply to it or forward it to any other individual.”

6. Board members should not rephrte-er-forward email received from another Board member.

When Must the Electronic Communications Sent or Received by Individual Board Members Be
Disclosed Pursuant to a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request?

An electronic communication must be disclosed if it is a public record as defined by FOIA, unless a
specific exemption applies. A public record is any recorded information “pertaining to the transaction
of public business, regardless of physical form or characteristics, having been prepared by or for, or
having been or being used by, received by, in the possession of, or under the control of any public
body.” 5 ILCS 140/2. Email sent or received by an individual Board member may be, depending on

2:140-E Page 1 of 4
Adopted 11/19/07
Revisons presented 02-09-15





the content and circumstances, subject to disclosure as a public record (unless a FOIA exemption is
applicable). WhenMust Emal-Be-Retained?

T3

If a Board member uses a District-provided device or email address to discuss public business, the

email is subject to disclosure under FOIA, barring an applicable exemption. If a Board member uses a
private device and email address, the communication is subject to FOIA if it satisfies this test:

First, the communication pertains to the transaction of public business, and

Second, the communication was: (1) prepared by a public body, (2) prepared for a public body,
(3) used by a public body, (4) received by a public body, (5) possessed by a public body, and/or
(6) controlled by a public body.

This test is from the appellate court decision in City of Champaign v. Madigan, 992 N.E.2d 629
(111.App.4th, 2013).

The following examples describe FOIA’s treatment of electronic communications:

1. If an electronic communication does not pertain to public business, it is not a public record and is
not subject to a FOIA request.

2. An electronic communication pertaining to public business that is:

a. _Sent and/or received by an individual Board member using a personal electronic device and
personal email address while he or she is at home or work would not be a public record.
Individual Board members, alone, cannot conduct school District business. As stated earlier,
emails among a majority or more of a Board-quorum violate the Open Meetings Act and,
thus, are subject to disclosure during proceedings to enforce the Open Meetings Act.

b. Sent and/or received by an individual Board member on a District-issued device or District-
issued email address will be a public record and subject to FOIA. The electronic
communication is under the control of the District.

c. Received by an individual Board member on a personal electronic device and then forwarded
by the Board member to a District-owned device or server will be a public record and
subject to FOIA. The electronic communication is under the control of the District.

d. Received by an individual Board member using a personal electronic device and personal
email address, and then forwarded by the Board member to enough members to constitute a
majority or more of a Board-quorum will be a public record and subject to FOIA. The
electronic communication is in the District’s possession.

e. Either sent to or from a Board member’s personal electronic device during a Board meeting
will be a public record and subject to FOIA. The electronic_communication is _in the
District’s possession because Board members were functioning collectively as a public body.

The District’s Freedom of Information Officer and/or Board Attorney will help determine when a
specific communication must be disclosed pursuant to a FOIA request.

2:140-E Page 2 of 4
Adopted 11/19/07
Revisons presented 02-09-15





When Must Electronic Communications Be Retained?

Email that qualifies under FOIA as a public record will need to be stored pursuant to the Local
Records Act, only if it is evidence of the District’s organization, function, policies, procedures, or
activities or contains informational data appropriate for preservation (Local Records Act, 50 ILCS
205/). An example is any email from a Board officer concerning a decision made in his or her
capacity as an officer. If a Board member uses his or her personal email, he or she must copy this type
of email to the appropriate District office where it will be stored. If made available, Board members
should use their email accounts provided by the District and the District will automatically store the
official record messages. The District will delete these official record messages as provided in an
applicable, approved retention schedule. Of course, email pertaining to public business that is sent or
received by a Board Member using a District-issued device or email address will be subject to FOIA,
even if the email does not need to be retained under the Local Records Act.

Important: Do not destroy any email concerning a topic that is being litigated without obtaining the
Board attorney’s direction. In federal lawsuits there is an automatic discovery of virtually all types of
electronically created or stored data that might be relevant. Attorneys will generally notify their

2:140-E Page 3 of 4
Adopted 11/19/07
Revisons presented 02-09-15





clients at the beginning of a legal proceeding not to destroy any electronic records that might be
relevant. For more discussion of a litigation hold, see 2:250-AP2, Protocols for Record Preservation
and Development of Retention Schedules._In addition, any person who knowingly with the intent to
defraud any party destroys, removes, or conceals any public record commits a Class 4 felony. 50
ILCS 205/4, amended by P.A. 98-1063.

2:140-E Page 4 of 4
Adopted 11/19/07
Revisons presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 3:10

General School Administration

Goals and Objectives

The Superintendent directs the administration in order to manage the School District and to facilitate
the implementation of a quality educational program in alignment with School Board policies 1:30,
The Joseph Sears School Vision Statement and 1:40 Philosophy of Education. Specific goals and
objectives are to:

1.

o &~ WD

Manage the District’s personnel, programs and buildings,
Provide-Overall educational expertiseprograms,
Develop and maintain channels for communication between the school and community,

Develop an administrative procedures manual implementing School Board policy,

Manage the District’s fiscal and business activities, and

74-6.Meet or exceed student performance and academic improvement goals established by the

Board.
LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-16.7, 5/10-21.4, and 5/10-21.4a.
CROSS REF-.: 1:30 The Joseph Sears School , 1:40 (Philosophy of Education), 2:20 (Powers

3:10

and Duties of the School Board), 2:130 (Board Superintendent Relationship),
3:40 (Superintendent), 3:50 (Administrative Personnel Other Than the
Superintendent), 3:60 (Administrative Responsibility of the Building Principal).

Page 1 of 1
Adopted 10-19-09
Revisions presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 3:40

General School Administration

Superintendent

Duties and Authority

The Superintendent is the District’s executive officer and is responsible for the administration and
management of the District schools in accordance with School Board policies and directives, and
State and federal law. District management duties include, without limitation, preparing, submitting,
publishing and posting reports and notifications as required by State and federal law. The
Superintendent is authorized to develop administrative procedures and take other action as needed to
implement Board policy and otherwise fulfill his or her responsibilities. The Superintendent may
delegate to other District staff members the exercise of any powers and the discharge of any duties
imposed upon the Superintendent by Board policies or by Board vote. The delegation of power or
duty, however, shall not relieve the Superintendent of responsibility for the action that was delegated.

Qualifications

The Superintendent must be of good character and of unquestionable morals and integrity. The
Superintendent shall have the experience and the skills necessary to work effectively with the Board,
District employees, students, and the community. The Superintendent shall have a valid
administrative eertificate-license and superintendent’s endorsement issued by the appropriate State
agency.

Evaluation

The Board will evaluate, at least annually, the Superintendent’s performance and effectiveness, using
standards and objectives developed by the Superintendent and Board that are consistent with the
Board’s policies and the Superintendent’s contract. A specific time should be designated for a formal
evaluation session with all Board members present. The evaluation should include a discussion of
professional strengths as well as performance areas needing improvement.

The Superintendent shall annually present evidence of professional growth through attendance at
educational conferences, in-service training, or similar continuing education pursuits.

Compensation and Benefits

The Board and the Superintendent shall enter into an employment agreement that conforms to Board
policy and State law. This contract shall govern the employment relationship between the Board and
the Superintendent. The terms of the Superintendent’s employment agreement, when in conflict with
this policy, will control.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-16.7, 5/10-21.4, 5/10-23.8, 5/21-7.1, 5/24-11, and 5/24A-3.
23 lllLAdmin.Code 881.310 and 29.130.

CROSS REF: 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the School Board), 2:130 (Board-Superintendent
Relationship), 2:240 (Board Policy Development), 3:10 (Goals and Objectives)

3:40 Adopted 09-21-09
Revised 11-18-13
Revisions Presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 3:60

General School Administration

Administrative Responsibility of Principal

The School Board, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, employs a Principal as the chief
administrators and instructional leaders of The Joseph Sears School. The primary responsibility of &
the Principal is the improvement of instruction. Each—The Principal shall perform all duties as
described in the State law Secheol-Cede-as well as such other duties as specified in his or her
employment agreement or as the Superintendent may assign, that are consistent with the Principal’s
education and training.

The Board and the Principal shall enter into an employment agreement that conforms to Board policy
and State law. The terms of an individual employment contract, when in conflict with this policy, will
control.

The Principal shall complete State law requirements to be a prequalified evaluator before conducting
an evaluation of a teacher.

The Superintendent or designee shall implement an evaluation plan for the Principal that complies
with Section 24A-15 of the School Code and relevant Illinois State Board of Education rules. Using
that plan, the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate the Principal. The Superintendent or designee
may conduct additional evaluations.

LEGAL REF.: 10 ILCS 5/4-6.2.
105 ILCS 5/2-3.534a, 5/10-20.14, 5/10-21.4a, 10-23.8a, 10-23.8b, and 5/24A-15.
105 ILCS 127/.
23 lll.Admin.Code Part-Parts 35 and 50, Subpart D.

CROSS REF.: 3:50 (Administrative Personnel Other Than the Superintendent), 5:250 (Leaves
of Absence)

3:60 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 09-21-09

Revised 10-17-11

Revisions Presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 4:110

Operational Services

Transportation

Free transportation service and vehicle adaptation is provided for a special education student if
included in the student’s individualized educational program. Homeless students shall be transported
in accordance with Section 45/1-15 of the Education for Homeless Children Act.

No school employee may transport students in school or private vehicles unless authorized by the
administration.

Every vehicle regularly used for the transportation of students must pass safety inspections in
accordance with State law and lllinois Department of Transportation regulations. The strobe light on
a school bus may be illuminated only when the bus is actually being used as a school bus and (1) is
stopping or stopped for loading or discharging students on a highway outside an urban area, or (2) is
bearing one or more students.

All contracts for charter bus services must contain the clause prescribed by State law regarding
criminal background checks for bus drivers.

Pre-Trip and Post-Trip Vehicle Inspection

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a pre-trip and post-trip inspection
procedure to ensure that the school bus driver: (1) tests the two-way radio or cellular radio
telecommunication device and ensures that it is functioning properly before the bus is operated, and
(2) walks to the rear of the bus before leaving the bus at the end of each route, work shift, or work
day, to check the bus for children or other passengers in the bus.

LEGAL REF.: McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.21a.

105 ILCS 45/1-15.

625 ILCS 5/13-109, 5/12-815, 5/12- 816, 5/12-813, 5/12-813.1
23 lll.LAdmin.Code 88 1.510 & 226.750.

ADMIN. PROC.: 4:110-AP2 (Bus Driver Communication Devices; Pre-Trip and Post-Trip)

Adopted 07-21-14
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:10

General Personnel

Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment

The School District shall provide equal employment opportunities to all persons regardless of their
race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, including gender identity, age,
ancestry, marital status, arrest record, military status, order of protection status, unfavorable military
discharge, citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States, use of
lawful products while not at work, being a victim of domestic or sexual violence, genetic information,
physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to perform the essential functions of the
job with reasonable accommodation, pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions; credit
history, unless a satisfactory credit history is an established bona fide occupational requirement of a
particular position, or other legally protected categories. No one will be penalized solely for his or
her status as a registered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver for purposes of the
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act, 410 ILCS 130/.

Persons who believe they have not received equal employment opportunities should report their
claims to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. These individuals are listed below. No employee or applicant will be discriminated or
retaliated against because he or she (1) requested, attempted to request, used, or attempted to use a
reasonable accommodation as allowed by the Illinois Human Rights Act, or (2) initiated a complaint,
was a witness, supplied information, or otherwise participated in an investigation or proceeding
involving an alleged violation of this policy or State or federal laws, rules or regulations, provided the
employee or applicant did not make a knowingly false accusation nor provide knowingly false
information.

Administrative Implementation

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator for personnel who shall be
responsible for coordinating the District’s nondiscrimination efforts.  The Nondiscrimination
Coordinator may be the Superintendent or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, addresses, and telephone
numbers of the District’s current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:

Superintendent — Dr. Kelley M. Kalinich
542 Abbotsford Road

Address

Kenilworth, Illinois 60043

Email: kkalinich@kenilworth38.org

(847) 853-3803
Telephone

Complaint Managers:

Principal — Mrs. Kendra Wallace Teacher — Mr. Jeff Rosen
542 Abbotsford Road 542 Abbotsford Road
5:10 Page 1 of 3

Adopted 01-09-12
Revisions prsented 02-09-15





Address Address
Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 Kenilworth, Illinois 60043
Email: kwallace@kenilworth38.org Email: jrosen@kenilworth38.org

(847) 853-3802

(847) 853-3830

Telephone

Telephone

The Superintendent shall also use reasonable measures to inform staff members and applicants that
the District is an equal opportunity employer, such as, by posting required notices and including this
policy in the appropriate handbooks.

Minority Recruitment

The District will attempt to recruit and hire minority employees. The implementation of this policy
may include advertising openings in minority publications, participating in minority job fairs, and
recruiting at colleges and universities with significant minority enrollments. This policy, however,
does not require or permit the District to give preferential treatment or special rights based on a
protected status without evidence of past discrimination.

LEGAL REF.:

5:10

Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. 8621 et seq.

Americans With Disabilities Act, Title I, 42 U.S.C. §12111 et seq.

Civil Rights Act of 1991, 29 U.S.C. §8621 et seq., 42 U.S.C. §1981 et seq., §2000e
et seq., and §12101 et seq.

Equal Employment Opportunities Act (Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964),
42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., 29 C.F.R. Part 1601.

Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. 8206(d).

Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. 82000ff et seq.

Immigration Reform and Control Act, 8 U.S.C. 81324a et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §791 et seq.

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.

Pregnancy Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000e(K).

Title IX of the Education Amendments, 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq., 34 C.F.R. Part
106.

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (1994), 38
U.S.C. 884301 et seq.

lll. Constitution, Art. I, 8817, 18, and 19.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.7, 5/10-20.7a, 5/10-21.1, 5/10-22.4, 5/10-23.5, 5/22-19, 5/24-4,
5/24-4.1, and 5/24-7.

Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act, 410 ILCS 130/40.

Genetic Information Protection Act, 410 ILCS 513/25.

I1l. Whistleblower Act, 740 ILCS 174/.

Ill. Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-103, 5/2-102, 5/2-103, and 5/6-101.

Religious Freedom Restoration Act, 775 ILCS 35/5.

Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 ILCS 70/.

Job Opportunities for Qualified Applicants Act, 820 ILCS 820 ILCS 75/.

Il. Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112/.

Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act, 820 ILCS 180/30.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.230.

Page 2 of 3
Adopted 01-09-12
Revisions prsented 02-09-15





CROSS REF.: 5:20 (Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria, 5:40
(Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease), 5:70 (Religious Holidays),
5:180 (Temporary lliness or Temporary Incapacity), 5:270 (Employment, At-
Will, Compensation, and Assignment), 5:300 (Schedules and Employment Year),
7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:180 (Preventing Bullying,
Intimidation, and Harassment), 8:70 (Accommodating Individuals with
Disabilities)

5:10 Page 3 of 3
Adopted 01-09-12
Revisions prsented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:185

General Personnel

Family and Medical Leave

Leave Description

An eligible employee may use unpaid family and medical leave (FMLA leave), as guaranteed by the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act;. The U.S. Department of Labor’s rules (federal rules)
implementing FMLA, as they may be amended from time to time, control FMLA leave.

An eligible employee may take FMLA leave for up to a combined total of 12 weeks each year12-
month period, beginning September 1 and ending August 31 of the next year.

During a single 12-month period, an eligible employee’s FMLA leave entitlement may be extended to
a total of 26 weeks of unpaid leave to care for a covered servicemember (defined hereinin the federal
rules) with a serious injury or illness. The “single 12-month period” is measured forward from the
date the employee’s first FMLA leave to care for the covered servicemember begins.

While FMLA leave is normally unpaid, the District may substitute an employee’s accrued
compensatory time-off and/or paid leave for unpaid FMLA leave. All policies and rules regarding the
use of paid leave apply when paid leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave. Any substitution of
paid leave for unpaid FMLA leave will count against the employee’s FMLA leave entitlement (i.e.,
the paid leave and unpaid FMLA leave will run concurrently). Use of FMLA leave shall not preclude
the use of other applicable unpaid leave that will extend the employee’s leave beyond 12 weeks,
provided that the use of FMLA leave shall not serve to extend such other unpaid leave. Any full
workweek period during which the employee would not have been required to work, including
summer break, winter break and spring break, is not counted against the employee’s FMLA leave
entitlement.

FMLA leave is available in one or more of the following instances:

1. The birth and first-year care of a son or daughter.

2. The adoption or foster placement of a son or daughter, including absences from work that are

necessary for the adoption or foster care to proceed and expiring at the end of the 12-month

period beginning on the placement date.

The serious health condition of an employee’s spouse, child, or parent.

4. The employee’s own serious health condition that renders the employee unable to perform the
functions of his or her job.

5. The existence of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse,
child, or parent is a eevered-military member on covered active duty, {or has been notified of
an |mpend|ng caII or order to actlve duty} as prowded by federal rulesm—suppen—ef—a

w

6. To care for the employee’s spouse, child, parent, or next of kin who is a covered
serwcemember Wlth a serious injury or illness, as prowded bv federal ruIes—A—eeveiced

5:185 Page 1 of 4
Adopted 03-18-13
- Revisions Presented 02-09-15





If spouses are employed by the District, they may together take only 12-weeks for FMLA leaves
when the reason for the leave is 1 or 2, above, or to care for a parent with a serious health condition,
or a combined total of 26 weeks for item 6 above.

An employee may be permitted to work on an mtermlttent %—sepamte—b#eele@f—ﬂm&ée&teﬂa—ﬁng#e

Hhness-er-injfury)-or reduced-leave ( 0
schedule in accordance with FMkArregalanensfederal rules

Eligibility
To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must be employed at a worksite where at least 50

employees are employed within 75 miles. In addition, one of the following provisions must describe
the employee:

1. The employee has been employed by the District for at least 12 months and has been
employed for at least 1,250 hours of service during the 12-month period immediately before
the beginning of the leave. The 12 months an employee must have been employed by the
District need not be consecutive. However, the District will not consider any period of
previous employment that occurred more than 7 years before the date of the most recent
hiring, except when the service break is due to National Guard or Reserve military service or
when a written agreement exists concerning the District’s intention to rehire the employee.

2. The employee is a full-time classroom teacher.

Requesting Leave

If the need for the FMLA leave is foreseeable, an employee must provide the Superintendent or
designee with at least 30 days’ advance notice before the leave is to begin. If 30 days’ advance notice
is not practicable, the notice must be given as soon as practicable. The employee shall make a
reasonable effort to schedule a planned medical treatment so as not to disrupt the District’s
operations, subject to the approval of the health care provider administering the treatment. The
employee shall provide at least verbal notice sufficient to make the Superintendent or designee aware
that he or she needs FMLA leave, and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Failure to
give the required notice for a foreseeable leave may result in a delay in granting the requested leave
until at least 30 days after the date the employee provides notice.

Certification

Within 15 calendar days after the Superintendent or designee makes a request for certification for a
FMLA leave, an employee must provide one of the following:

1. When the leave is to care for the employee’s covered family member with a serious heath
condition, the employee must provide a complete and sufficient certificate eempleted-signed
by the family member’s health care provider.

2. When the leave is due to the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee must
provide a complete and sufficient certificate completed-signed by the employee’s health care
provider.

3. When the leave is to care for a covered servicemember with a serious illness or injury, the
employee must provide a a complete and sufficient certificate eompleted—signed by an
authorized health care provider for the covered servicemember.

4. When the leave is because of a qualified exigency, the employee must provide: (a) a copy of
the covered military member’s active duty orders or other documentation issued by the

5:185 Page 2 of 4
Adopted 03-18-13
- Revisions Presented 02-09-15





military indicating that the military member is on active duty or call to active duty status i

suppert-of-a-contingency-operation, and the dates of the covered military member’s active

duty service, and (b) a statement or description, signed by the employee, of appropriate facts
regarding the qualifying exigency for which FMLA leave is requested.-

The District may require an employee to obtain a second and third opinion at its expense when it has
reason to doubt the validity of a medical certification.

The District may require recertification at reasonable intervals, but not more often than once every 30
days. Regardless of the length of time since the last request, the District may request recertification
when the, (1) employee requests a leave extension, (2) circumstances described by the original
certification change significantly, or (3) District receives information that casts doubt upon the
continuing validity of the original certification. Recertification is at the employee’s expense and must
be provided to the District within 15 calendar days after the request. The District may request
recertification every 6 months in connection with any absence by an employee needing an
intermittent or reduced schedule leave for conditions with a duration in excess of 6 months.

Failure to furnish a complete and sufficient certification on forms provided by the District may result
in a denial of the leave request.

Continuation of Health Benefits

During FMLA leave, employees are entitled to continuation of health benefits that would have been
provided if they were working. Any share of health plan premiums being paid by the employee
before taking the leave, must continue to be paid by the employee during the FMLA leave. A
District’s obligation to maintain health insurance coverage ceases if an employee’s premium payment
is more than 30 days late and the District notifies the employee at least 15 days before coverage will
cease.

Changed Circumstances and Intent to Return

An employee must provide the Superintendent or designee reasonable notice of changed
circumstances (i.e., within 2 business days if the changed circumstances are foreseeable) that will
alter the duration of the FMLA leave. The Superintendent or designee, taking into consideration all
of the relevant facts and circumstances related to an individual’s leave situation, may ask an
employee who has been on FMLA leave for 8 consecutive weeks whether he or she intends to return
to work.

Return to Work

If returning from FMLA leave resulting from the employee’s own serious health condition, the
employee is required to obtain and present certification from the employee’s health care provider that
he or she is able to resume work. The Board may deny the employee’s return to work until the
certification is submitted.

An employee returning from FMLA leave will be given an equivalent position to his or her position
before the leave, subject to: (1) permissible limitations the District may impose as provided in the
FMLA or implementing regulations, and (2) the District’s reassignment policies and practices.

Classroom teachers may be required to wait to return to work until the next semester in certain
situations as provided by the FMLA regulations.

Implementation

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that: (1) all required notices and responses to leave requests
are provided to employees in accordance with the FMLA; and (2) this policy is implemented in

5:185 Page 3 of 4
Adopted 03-18-13
- Revisions Presented 02-09-15





accordance with the FMLA. In the event of a conflict between the policy and the FMLA or its regulations,
the latter shall control. The terms used in this policy shall be defined as in the FMLA regulations.

LEGAL REF.; Family and Medical Leave Act, 29 U.S.C. §2601 et seq., 29 C.F.R. Part 825.

CROSS REF.: 5:180 (Temporary llIness or Temporary Incapacity), 5:250 (Leaves of Absence),
5:310 (Compensatory Time-Off)

5:185 Page 4 of 4
Adopted 03-18-13
- Revisions Presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:220

Professional Personnel

Substitute Teachers

The Superintendent may employ substitute teachers as necessary to replace teachers who are
temporarily absent.

A substitute teacher must hold either a valid teaching or substitute eertificate-license and may teach in
the place of a certified-licensed teacher who is under contract with the Board. There is no limit on the
number of days that a substitute teacher may teach in the District durlng the school year—l=|ett\,¢e>¢,¢etC

follows:

1. A substitute teacher holding a substitute certificate-license may teach for any one licensed
teacher under contract with the District only for a period not to exceed 90 school days.

2. A teacher holding a—valid—early—childhood—elementary—high-seheol—Professional Educator
License or special—certificateEducator License with Stipulations, may teach for any one
licensed teacher under contract with the District only for a period not to exceed 120 school
days.

The Illinois Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) in-HHreis-limits a substitute teacher who is a TRS
annuitant to substitute teaching for a period not to exceed 100 paid days or 500 paid hours in any
school year, unless the subject area is one where the appropriate Intermediate Service Center has
certified that a personnel shortage exists.

The School Board establishes a daily rate of pay for substitute teachers. Substitute teachers receive
only monetary compensation for time worked and no other benefits. Substitute teachers are
considered “at will”, employees.

Emergency Situations

| A substitute teacher may teach when no eertified-licensed teacher is under contract with the Board if
the District has an emergency situation as defined in State law. During an emergency situation, a
substitute teacher is limited to 30 calendar days of employment per each vacant position. The
Superintendent wit-shall notify the appropriate Intermediate Service Center of Education within 5
business days after the first day of the employment of a substitute teacher in an emergency situation.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/21-9, 5/21B-20(3), and 24-5.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.790.
CROSS REF.: 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria)
5:220 Page 1 of 1

Adopted 03-18-13
Revisions presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 6:280

Instruction

Grading and Promotion

The Superintendent shall establish a system of grading and reporting academic achievement to
students and their parents/guardians. The system shall also determine when promotion and graduation
requirements are met. The decision to promote a student to the next grade level shall be based on
successful completion of the curriculum, attendance, and performance based-on the Illinois Standards
Achievement—TestsPartnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC),
and/or other testingassessments. A student shall not be promoted based upon age or any other social
reason not related to academic performance. The administration shall determine remedial assistance
for a student who is not promoted.

Every teacher shall maintain an evaluation record for each student in the teacher’s classroom. A
District administrator may change the final grade assigned by the teacher without notifying the
teacher. Reasons for changing a student’s final grade include:

A miscalculation of test scores,

A technical error in assigning a particular grade or score,

The teacher agrees to allow the student to do extra work that may affect the grade,

An inappropriate grading system was used to determine the grade, or

An inappropriate grade based on an appropriate grading system.

An administrator who changes a final grade must sign the changed record.

LEGAL REF. 105 ILCS-5/2-3-64 5/2-3.64a-5, 5/10-20.9a, 5/10-21.8, and 5/27-27.

CROSS REF-.: 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or Dropping Out
of School and Graduation Incentives Program), 6:300 (Graduation
Requirements), 6:340 (Student Testing and Assessment Program),7:50 (School
Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools)

6:280 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 04-16-12
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 6:340

Instruction

Student Testing and Assessment Program

The District student assessment program provides information for determining individual student
achievement and instructional needs; curriculum and instruction effectiveness; and school
performance measured against District student learning objectives and statewide norms.

The Superintendent or designee shall manage the student assessment program that, at a minimum:

1. Uses-Administers the State assessment system known as the Partnership for Assessment of
Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC), to all students and/or are any other appropriate
assessment methods and instruments, including norm and criterion-referenced achievement
tests, aptitude tests, proficiency tests, and teacher-developed tests.

2. Informs students of the timelines and procedures appllcable to their partlcmatlon in everv

3. TFracks-the-achievementofall-students—Provides each student’s parents/quardians with the
results or scores of each State assessment and an evaluation of the student’s progress. See
policy 6:280, Grading and Promotion.

5.4. Utilizes professional testing practices.

Overall student assessment data on tests required by State law will be aggregated by the District and
reported, along with other information, on the District’s annual report card. Board policy 7:340,
Student Records, and its implementing procedures govern recordkeeping and access issues.

LEGAL REF.: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232g.
105-H-CS-5/2-3:63-105ILCS 5/2-3.63a-5, 5/2-3.64, 5/10-17a, and 5/27-1.

CROSS REF.: 6:15 (School Accountability), 6:280 (Grading and Promotion), 7:340 (Student
Records)

6:340 Page 1 of 1

Adopted 03-18-13
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:100

Students

Health, Eve, and Dental Examinations; Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students

Required Health Examinations and Immunizations

As—reguired-by-the Hlinois-Department-of Public- Healthstudent’s-A student’s parent(s)/guardian(s)
shall present proof that the student received a health examination, and-with proof of sereeningsfor;

ane-the immunizations against and screenings for, preventable communicable diseases, as required by
the Illinois Department of Public Health within one year prior to:

1. Entering kindergarten or the first grade;
2. Entering the sixth and ninth grades; and

3. Enrolling in an Illinois school, regardless of the student’s grade (including Junior
Kindergarten, special education, Head sStart programs operated by elementary or secondary
schools, and students transferring into lllinois from out of state or out of the country).

Proof of immunization against meningococcal disease is required from students in grades 6 and 12,
beginning with the 2015-2016 school vyear.

As required by State law:

1. Health examinations must be performed by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of
its branches, an advanced practice nurse who has a written collaborative agreement with a
collaborating physician authorizing the advanced practice nurse to perform health
examinations, or a physician assistant who has been delegated the performance of health
examinations by a supervising physician.

2. A diabetes screening must be included as a required part of each health examination;
diabetes testing is not required.

3. Before admission and in conjunction with required physical examinations, parents/guardians
of children between the ages of 6 months and 6 years must provide a statement from a
physician that their child was “risk-assessed” or screened for lead poisoning.

4. The Department of Public Health will provide all female students entering sixth grade and
their parents/guardians with information about the link between human papilloma virus
(HPV) and cervical cancer and the availability of the HPV vaccine.

Unless exemption or extension applies, failure to comply with the above requirements by October 15
of the current school year will result in the student’s exclusion from school until the required health
forms are presented to the District. New students who register after October 15 of the current school
year shall have 30 days following registration to comply with the health examination and
immunization regulations. If a medical reason prevents a student from receiving a required
immunization by October 15, the student must present, by October 15, an immunization schedule and
a statement of the medical reasons causing the delay. The schedule and statement of medical reasons
must be signed by the physician, advanced practice nurse, physician assistant, or local health
department responsible for administering the immunizations.

Unti-June-36,2015,a-A student transferring from -out of state who does not have the required proof
of immunizations by October 15 may attend classes only if he or she has proof that an appointment
for the required vaccinations is scheduled with a party authorized to submit proof of the required

7:100 Page 1 of 3
Revised 04-16-12
Revisions presented 02-09-15





vaccinations. If the required proof of vaccination is not submitted within 30 days after the student is
permitted to attend classes, the student may no longer attend classes until proof of the vaccinations is
submitted.

Eye Examination

Parents/guardians of students entering kindergarten or an Illinois school for the first time shall present
proof before October 15 of the current school year that the student received an eye examination
within one year prior to entry of kindergarten or the school. A physician licensed to practice
medicine in all of its branches or a licensed optometrist must perform the required eye examination.

If a student fails to present proof by October 15, the school may hold the student’s report card until
the student presents proof: (1) of a completed eye examination, or (2) that an eye examination will
take place within 60 days after October 15. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
parents/guardians are notified of this eye examination requirement in compliance with the rules of the
Department of Public Health. Schools shall not exclude a student from attending school due to failure
to obtain an eye examination. Parents/guardians are encouraged to have their children undergo an eye
examination whenever health examinations are required.

Dental Examination

All children in kindergarten and the second and sixth grades must present proof of having been
examined by a licensed dentist before May 15 of the current school year in accordance with rules
adopted by the Illinois Department of Public Health.

If a child in the second or sixth grade fails to present proof by May 15, the school may hold the
child’s report card until the child presents proof: (1) of a completed dental examination, or (2) that a
dental examination will take place within 60 days after May 15. The Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that parents/guardians are notified of this dental examination requirement at least 60 days
before May 15 of each school year.

Exemptions

In accordance with rules adopted by the Illinois Department of Public Health, a student will be
exempted from this policy’s requirements for:

1. Religious or medical grounds if the student’s parents/guardians present to the Superintendent
a signed statement explaining the objection;

2. Health examination or immunization requirements on medical grounds if a physician
provides written verification;

3. Eye examination requirement if the student’s parents/guardians show an undue burden or lack
of access to a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches who provides eye
examinations or to a licensed optometrist; or

4. Dental examination requirement if the student’s parents/guardians show an undue burden or a
lack of access to a dentist.

Homeless Child

Any homeless child shall be immediately admitted, even if the child or child’s parent/guardian is
unable to produce immunization and health records normally required for enrollment. School Board
policy 6:140, Education of Homeless Children, governs the enrollment of homeless children.

7:100 Page 2 of 3
Revised 04-16-12
Revisions presented 02-09-15





LEGAL REF.: McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/27-8.1 and 45/1-20.
410 ILCS 45/7.1 and 315/2e.
23 1l Admin.Code §1.530.
77 lLAdmin.Code Part 665.
77 1ll.LAdmin.Code Part 695.

CROSS REF-.: 6:30 (Organization of Instruction), 6:140 (Education of Homeless Children),
6:180 (Extended Instructional Programs), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student
Transfers To and From Non-District Schools)

7:100 Page 3 of 3
Revised 04-16-12
Revisions presented 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:270

Students

Administering Medicines to Students

Students should not take medication during school hours or during school-related activities unless it is
necessary for a student’s health and well-being. When a student’s licensed health care provider and
parent/guardian believe that it is necessary for the student to take a medication during school hours or
school-related activities, the parent/guardian must request that the school dispense the medication to
the child and otherwise follow the District’s procedures on dispensing medication.

No Sehoel-District employee shall administer to any student, or supervise a student’s self-
administration of, any prescription or non-prescription medication until a completed and signed
“School Medication Authorization Form” is submitted by the student’s parent/guardian. No student
shall possess or consume any prescription or non-prescription medication on school grounds or at a
school-related function other than as provided for in this policy and its implementing procedures.

Nothing in this policy shall prohibit any school employee from providing emergency assistance to
students, including administering medication.

The Building Principal shall include this policy in the Student Handbook and shall provide a copy to
the parents/guardians of students.

Self-Administration of Medication

A student may possess an epinephrine auto-injector (EpiPen®) and/or asthma medication prescribed
for asthmafer-immediate-use at the student’s discretion, provided the student’s parent/guardian has
completed and signed a <School Medication Authorization Form.2 The Seheol-District shall incur no
liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, as a result of any injury arising from a student’s self-
administration of medication or epinephrine auto-injector or the storage of any medication by school
personnel. A student’s parent/guardian must indemnify and hold harmless the Sehoel-District and its
employees and agents, against any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct,
arising out of a student’s self-administration of an epinephrine auto-injector and/or medication, or the
storage of any medication by school personnel.

Seheol-District Supply of Undesignated Epinephrine Auto-Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall implement Section 22-30(f) of the School Code and maintain a
supply of undesignated epinephrine auto-injectors in the name of the District and provide or
administer them as necessary according to State law. Undesignated epinephrine auto-injector means
an epinephrine auto-injector prescribed in the name of the District or one of its schools. A school
nurse or trained personnel, as defined in State law, may administer an undesignated epinephrine auto-
injector to a person when they, in good faith, believe a person is having an anaphylactic reaction.

This section of the policy is void whenever the Superintendent or designee is, for whatever reason,
unable to: (1) obtain for the District a prescription for seheelundesignated epinephrine auto-injectors
and-a-standing-pretecol-from a physician or advanced practice nurse licensed to practice medicine in
all its branches, or (2) fill the District’s prescription for undesignated school epinephrine auto-
injectors.

Upon any administration of an undesignated epinephrine auto-injector, the Superintendent or
designee(s) must ensure all notifications required by State law and administrative procedures occur.

7:270 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 06/16/08
Revised 04-16-12
Revised 02-09-15





Upon implementation of this subsection—and—Section—22-30{F—of theSchoel-Cedepolicy, the

protections from liability and hold harmless provisions as explained in Section 22-30(c) of the School
Code apply.

No one, including without limitation parents/guardians of students, should rely on the District for the
availability of an epinephrine auto-injector. This policy does not guarantee the availability of an
epinephrine auto-injector; students and their parents/guardians should consult their own physician
regarding this medication.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.14b, 5/10-22.21b, and 5/22-30.

CROSS REF.: 7:285 (Food Allergy Management)

ADMIN. PROC.: 7:270-AP (Dispensing Medication), 7:270-AP2 (Checklist for District Supply of
Undesignated Epinephrine Auto-Injectors), 7:270-E (School Medication
Authorization Form)

7:270 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 06/16/08
Revised 04-16-12
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:300

Students

Extracurricular Athletics

Student participation in school-sponsored extracurricular athletic activities is contingent upon the
following:

1. The student must meet the academic criteria set forth in the School Board policy on school
sponsored extracurricular activities.

2. The parent(s)/guardian(s) must provide written permission for the student’s participation,
giving the District full waiver of responsibility of the risks involved.

d

3. The student must present a certificate of physical fitness issued by a licensed physician, an
advanced practice nurse, or a physician assistant who assures that the student’s health status
allows for active athletic participation. The certificate of physical fitness is current for only
one 12-month period from the date of issuance.

4. The District’s insurance cooperative provides insurance coverage for all student athletes. If
such insurance were to be discontinued by the District, a student would be required to student
must-show proof of accident insurance coverage either by a policy purchased through the
District-approved insurance plan or a parent(s)/guardian(s) written statement that the student
is covered under a family insurance plan.

3— « [ Formatted: No bullets or numbering

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the necessary records to ensure student compliance
with this policy.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.30 and 25/2.
23 lll. Admin.Code §1.530(b).

CROSS REF.: 4:100 (Insurance Management)-, 4:170 (Safety), 6:190 (Extracurricular and Co-
Curricular Activities), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular
Activities), 7:340 (Student Records).

7:300 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 05/19/08
Revisions presented 02-09-15







Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:50

Students
School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools

Age

To be eligible for admission to Junior Kindergarten, a child must be 4 years old on or before
September 1 of that school term. Children who enter kindergarten must be 5 years old on or
before September 1 of that school term. Children who enter first grade must be 6 years of age
on or before September 1 of that school year. Based upon an assessment of the child’s
readiness, a child will be allowed to attend first grade if he or she attended a non-public
preschool, continued his or her education at that school through kindergarten, was taught in
kindergarten by an appropriately certified teacher, and will be 6 years old on or before
December 31. A child with exceptional needs who qualifies for special education services is
eligible for admission at 3 years of age.

Admission Procedure

All students must register for school each year on the dates and at the place designated by the
Superintendent.

Parents/guardians of students enrolling in the District for the first time must present:

1. A certified copy of the student’s birth certificate. If a birth certificate is not presented,
the Superintendent or designee shall notify in writing the person enrolling the student
that within 30 days he or she must provide a certified copy of the student’s birth
certificate. A student will be enrolled without a birth certificate. Upon the failure of a
person enrolling a student to provide a copy of the student’s birth certificate within 30
days of enrollment, the Principal shall immediately notify the local law enforcement
agency and shall also notify the person enrolling the student in writing that, unless he
or she complies within 10 days, the case shall be referred to the local law enforcement
authority for investigation. If compliance is not obtained within that 10-day period,
the Principal shall so refer the case. The Principal shall immediately report to the
local law enforcement authority any material received pursuant to this paragraph that
appears inaccurate or suspicious in form or content.

2. Proof of residence, as required by Board policy 7:60, Student Residency.

Proof of disease immunization or detection and the required physical examination, as
required by State law and Board policy 7:100, Health, Eye and Dental Examinations;;
Immunizations;; and Exclusion of Students.

The individual enrolling a student shall be given the opportunity to voluntarily state whether the
student has a parent or guardian who is a member of a branch of the U. S. Armed Forces and who is
either deployed to active duty or expects to be deployed to active duty during the school year.
Students who are children of active duty military personnel transferring will be allowed to enter: (a)

7:50 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 1/13/2006

Revised 09-24-12

Revised 02-09-15





the same grade level in which they studied at the school from which they transferred, if the transfer

occurs during the District’s school year, or (b) the grade level following the last grade completed.

Homeless Children

Any homeless child shall be immediately admitted, even if the child or child’s
parent/guardian is unable to produce records normally required for enroliment. Board policy
6:140, Education of Homeless Children, and its implementing administrative procedure,

[Formatted: Font: Italic

govern the enrollment of homeless children.

Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools

A student may transfer into or out of the District according to State law and procedures
developed by the Superintendent_or designee. A student seeking to transfer into the District
must serve the entire term of any suspension or expulsion, imposed for any reason by any
public or private school, in this or any other state, before being admitted into the School

District.

LEGAL REF.

CROSS REF.:

7:50

McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 811431 et seq.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232.

lllegal Immigrant and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C.
81101.

Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act, 20 U.S.C. 81400 et

seq.

Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, 29 U.S.C. §794.

105 ILCS 5/2-3.13a, 5/10-20.12, 5/10-22.5a, 5/14-1.02, 5/14-1.03a, 5/26-1,
5/26-2, 5/27-8.1, and-10/8.1, 45/, and 70/.

325 ILCS 55/1 et seq. and 50/1 et seq.

20 1lILAdmin.Code Part 1290, Missing Person Birth Records and School

Registration.
23 L Admin.Code §375 et seq.

6:30 (Organization of Instruction), 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk
of Academic Failure and/or Dropping out of School and Graduation
Incentives Program), 6:140 (Education of Homeless Children), 6:300
(Graduation Requirements), é: i i

- Hut ~7:60 (Residence), 7:70 (Attendance
and Truancy), 7:100 (Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations;
Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students), 7:340 (Student Records)

Page 2 of 2
Adopted 1/13/2006
Revised 09-24-12
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:70

Students

Attendance and Truancy

Compulsory School Attendance

This policy applies to individuals who have custody or control of a child: (a) whose age meets
the compulsory attendance age listed in State law,{a)-between-the-ages-of7through-their t4th

, or (b) who is enrolled in any of
grades, kindergarten through 12, in the public school regardless of age.

Unless a student has already graduated from high school, compulsory attendance ages are as follows: «— [ Formatted: Left

1. Before the 2014-2015 school year, students between the ages of 7 and 17 years.

2. Beginning with the 2014-2015 school year, students between the ages of 6 (on or before
September 1) and 17 years.

following children are not required to attend public school: (1) any child attending a private school
(including a home school) or parochial school, (2) any child who is physically or mentally unable to
attend school (including a pregnant student suffering medical complications as certified by her
physician), (3) any child lawfully and necessarily employed, (4) any child over 12 and under 14 years
of age while in confirmation classes and (5) any child absent because his or her religion forbids
secular activity on a particular day.

The parent/guardian of a student who is enrolled must authorize all absences from school and notify
the school in advance or at the time of the student’s absence. A valid cause for absence includes
iliness, observance of a religious holiday, death in the immediate family, family emergency, other
situations beyond the control of the student, other circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the
parent/guardian for the student’s safety or health, or other reason as approved by the Superintendent
or designee.

Absenteeism and Truancy Program

The Superintendent or designee shall manage an absenteeism and truancy program in accordance with
The School Code and School Board policy. The program shall include but not be limited to:

1. A protocol for excusing a student from attendance who is necessarily and lawfully employed.
The Superintendent or designee is authorized to determine when the student’s absence is
justified.

2. A process to telephone, within 2 hours after the first class, the parents/guardians of students
in grade 8 or below who are absent without prior parent/guardian notification.

3. A process to identify and track students who are truants, chronic or habitual truants, or truant
minors as defined in The School Code, Section 26-2a.

4. Methods for identifying the cause(s) of a student’s unexcused absenteeism, including
interviews with the student, his or her parent(s)/guardian(s), and staff members or other
people who may have information.

7:70 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 11-19-07
Revised 02-09-15





The identification of supportive services that may be offered to truant or chronically truant
students, including parent-teacher conferences, student and/or family counseling, or
information about community agency services. See Board Policy 6:110, Programs for
Students_at Risk of Academic Failureandfer—Bropping—Out—ofSchooland—Graduation
theentive Program.

A process to request the assistance and resources of outside agencies, such as, the juvenile
officer of the local police department or the truant office of the appropriate Regional Office
of Education, if truancy continues after supportive services have been offered.

A protocol for cooperating with non-District agencies including County or municipal
authorities, the Regional Superintendent, truant officers, the Community Truancy Review
Board, and a comprehensive community based youth service agency. Any disclosure of
school student records must be consistent with Board policy 7:340, Student Records, as well
as State and federal law concerning school student records.

An acknowledgement that no punitive action, including out-of-school suspensions,
expulsions, or court action, shall be taken against a chronic truant for his or her truancy
unless available supportive services and other school resources have been provided to the
student.

The criteria to determine whether a student’s non-attendance is due to extraordinary
circumstances shall include economic or medical necessity or family hardship and such other
criteria that the Superintendent believes qualifies.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/26-1 through 16.

705 ILCS 405/3-33.5.
23 lll.LAdmin.Code §81.242 and 1.290.

CROSS REF.: 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure-andfer-Dropping-Out

7:70

of Schooland-GraduationthcentivesProgram), 6:150 (Home and Hospital
Instruction), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:50 (School Admissions
and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:60 (Residence),
7:80 (Release Time for Religious Instruction/Observance), 7:190 (Student
Discipline), 7:340 (Student Records)

Page 2 of 2
Adopted 11-19-07
Revised 02-09-15






Kenilworth School District No. 38 8:80

Community Relations

Gifts to the District

The District welcomes donations of money, equipment and materials from any education foundation or
other entity or individual, provided the gift can be used in a manner compatible with the Board’s
educational objectives and policies. While the Board encourages unrestricted monetary gifts, donations
to fund specific projects or programs are acceptable if the project or program is approved by the Board.
Non-monetary or in-kind gifts must receive prior approval of the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall develop procedures for review and approval of donations that involve
incorporating messages into or placing messages upon school property. Donors’ messages incorporated
into or placed upon school property shall be accompanied by a disclaimer stating that the messages are
the personal expressions of individual donors and do not represent the views of the District.

Approval by the Board of Education must be obtained before beginning a fund-raising campaign or
collection for any donations including specific projects or programs. All gifts received become the
District’s property. In all cases final discretion as to the acceptance and application of gifts will rest with
the Superintendent and the Board of Education. All gifts must comply with Illinois law.

Additional Parameters

e Recognition opportunities associated with donations to the Joseph Sears School Foundation (JSS
Foundation) brick naming program, the Library Technology Center book naming program and for
gifts of exceptional generosity which enable significant or unique enhancements of The Joseph Sears
School educational programs or facilities will be considered upon the discretion of the
Superintendent and Board of Education.

e Donors will be encouraged to work through organizations associated with the District, including but
not limited to the JSS Foundation, Sears School Booster Club, and the Joseph Sears School Parents’
Volunteer Association (JSSPVA). Recognition of donations for established District groups may
include a small permanent plaque with the organization’s name attached to the gift. Individuals or
groups wishing to donate but who do not wish to work through one of the established District groups
must contact the Superintendent.

o District employees shall not solicit donations from vendors with whom they may enter into contracts.

Namin

The Board of Education reserves the right to name buildings, programs, parts of buildings, or outdoor
facilities in honor of an employee who has rendered exceptional service to Kenilworth District No. 38.

Advertising

Advertising of any nature by for-profit entities on School District property must be approved in advance
by the Superintendent and the Board of Education.

Tribute and Memorial Gifts

8:80 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 04/20/09
Revisions presented 02-09-15





Tribute and memorial gifts in honor of Sears School students, faculty, staff, alumni, retirees or friends of
the School are encouraged to be made to established school groups or programs.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/16-1.

8:80 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 04/20/09
Revisions presented 02-09-15






NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 9™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook
County, Illinois will hold a Regular Meeting on the 9t day of February, 2015 at 6:30 o’clock p.m., for the
Closed Session meeting in Room 252 and at 7:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library Technology
Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois.

AGENDA
Room 252 (Closed Session - 6:30 p.m.)
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Present Absent Present Absent
Timothy Kollar Stacey M. Van Metre
Christine L. Stoll Scott Wallace
Betsy Moerschel Gregory F. Werd

Suzanne S. Nelson

I1. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE
MATTERS, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL
PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY (Tab Closed Session)

Library Technology Center (Open Session - 7:30 p.m.)

ITI. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Present Absent Present Absent
Timothy Kollar Stacey M. Van Metre
Christine L. Stoll Scott Wallace
Betsy Moerschel Gregory F. Werd

Suzanne S. Nelson

IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment)
V. STRATEGIC PLAN PRESENTATION

» Presentation and Discussion of Master/Bell Schedule Recommendations (Tab A)
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS (Tab B)

A. Freedom of Information Act Requests - There were three new requests and one continued request
to include: Teachers” Association Professional Time Off; Copies of Printer and Copier Lease
Agreements; Documents Related to Legal Counsel Retention; and Employment Information for
Non-Certified Employees

B. Report from the Superintendent
» Presentation of School Climate Survey Action Plan

C. Report from the Business Services and Human Resources Manager
» ISBE Annual Financial Profile Report

D. Report from the Principal





VIIL

VIIIL

IX.

X.

XI.

XII.

E.

Report from the Director of Student Services

CONSENT AGENDA

A

~TIOTMMUOW

Approval of Minutes of the December 15, 2014, Regular Meeting and Closed Session (Tab
Minutes)

Approval of Investment Reports for December 2014 (Tab Financial)

Ratification of Accounts Payable for December 16, 2014 to January 20, 2015 (Tab Financial)
Approval of Accounts Payable for January 21, 2015 to February 9, 2015 (Tab Financial)
Destruction of Closed Session Recordings for July and August 2013

Approval of Requests for Family Medical Leave (Tab Closed Session)

Approval of Request for Retirement (Tab Closed Session)

Acceptance of Employee Resignation (Tab Closed Session)

Approval of Board Policy Revisions: 2:140 Communications To and From the Board, 3:10 Goals and
Objectives, 3:40 Superintendent, 3:60 Administrative Responsibility of Principal, 4:110 Transportation,
5:10 Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment, 5:185 Family and Medical Leave, 5:220
Substitute Teachers, 6:280 Grading and Promotion, 6:340 Student Testing and Assessment Program, 7:50
School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools, 7:70 Attendance and
Truancy, 7:100 Health, Eye and Dental Examinations: Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students, 7:270
Administering Medicines to Students, 7:300 Extracurricular Athletics, 8:80 Gifts to the District (Tab C)

OLD BUSINESS

A.

B.

Discussion of and Potential Action to Authorize Posting of the Instructional Facilitator Position for
the 2015-2016 School Year (Tab D)

Discussion of Board, District and The Joseph Sears School Communications with the Community
(Tab E)

NEW BUSINESS

A.

B.

C.

D.

Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve Contract for Dr. Crystal LeRoy as Superintendent/
Chief School Business Official (Closed Session)

Discussion of and Potential Action to Hire Communication Coordinator (Closed Session)
Presentation of Board Policies for Consideration: 4:30 Revenue and Investments and 8:30 Community
Relations - Visitors to and Conduct on School Property (Tab F)

Discussion of and Potential Action to Streamline the Board of Education Committees

OTHER BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment)

ADJOURNMENT

Dated the 6th day of February, 2015.

T Fgeter oy, TS gl
Kelley M. Kalinich
Secretary, Board of Education

Kenilworth School District No. 38






SUPERINTENDENT-CSBO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

THIS EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT (the “Contract’) made this _ day of February, 2015,
between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38, COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, hereinafter referred to as the "Board,” and DR. CRYSTAL LEROY,
hereinafter referred to as the "Superintendent-CSBO."

WITNESSETH

A. EMPLOYMENT AND COMPENSATION

1. Contract Duration and Annual Salary

The Board hereby employs the Superintendent-CSBO for two (2) years, commencing on
July 1, 2015, and terminating on June 30, 2017. The term "CSBQO” refers to the title and
role of Chief School Business Official pursuant to Section 10-22.23a of The School
Code. The annual salary shall be ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($185,000) for the 2015-2016 contract year and ONE HUNDRED NINETY
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($190,000) for the 2016-2017 contract year, payable in equal
installments in accordance with the rules of the Board governing payments of other
administrative staff members in the District. The Superintendent-CSBO is eligible for a
year-end bonus payment up to a maximum of five percent (5.0%) of her annual salary.
This discretionary bonus will be based upon the Board’s annual review and evaluation of
the Superintendent-CSBO’s performance pursuant to paragraph F of this Contract and
its assessment of the Superintendent-CSBO’s progress towards meeting the annual
performance goals set forth in Appendix A.

Upon Board approval and execution of this Contract, the Superintendent-CSBO wiill
receive a one-time FIVE THOUSAND DOLLAR ($5,000) signing bonus. The
Superintendent-CSBO hereby accepts employment upon the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth.

2. TRS and THIS Contributions

In addition to the annual salary set forth in paragraph A.1 of this Contract, the Board
shall make a contribution on behalf of the Superintendent-CSBO to the State of lllinois
Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) in satisfaction of the Superintendent-CSBO’s
required retirement contribution to TRS. In addition, the Board shall pay the
Superintendent-CSBO’s required contribution to TRS for Teacher Retirees’ Health
Insurance (THIS). It is the intention of the parties to qualify all such payments paid by
the Board on the Superintendent-CSBQO’s behalf as employer payments pursuant to
Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Superintendent-CSBO does not have
any right or claim to said amounts except as they may become available at the time of
retirement or resignation from the State of lllinois Teachers’ Retirement System. Both
parties acknowledge that the Superintendent-CSBO did not have the option of choosing
to receive the contributed amounts directly, instead of having such contributions paid by
the Board to the State of lllinois Teachers’ Retirement System, and that such
contributions are made as a condition of employment to secure the Superintendent-
CSBO’s future services, knowledge, and experience.

478229v1





3. Salary Adjustments

Any salary adjustments or modifications in the Superintendent-CSBO’s compensation or
fringe benefits made during the term of this Contract shall be in the form of a written
amendment and shall become a part of this Contract, but any such adjustment or
modification shall not be construed as a new contract with the Superintendent-CSBO or
as an extension of the termination date of this Contract.

4. Certificate
Throughout the term of this Contract, the Superintendent-CSBO shall hold a valid and
current lllinois license endorsed to qualify her to act as Superintendent-CSBO of the

School District.

5. Fitness for Duty Assessment

The Board may, at its discretion, require the Superintendent-CSBO to undergo a fitness
for duty medical examination to assess and determine whether the Superintendent-
CSBO is fit to perform the essential functions of her position. The Board shall select the
physician for this examination and assessment.

6. Waiver of Tenure

The Superintendent-CSBO acknowledges that by accepting the terms of this multi-year
Superintendent-CSBO’s Employment Contract, the Superintendent-CSBO waives any
right to tenure in the School District for the duration of this multi-year Contract pursuant
to Section 5/10-23.8 of The School Code.

B. BENEFITS

1. Business Expenses

The Board shall reimburse the Superintendent-CSBO for reasonable monthly expenses
incurred in the performance of her duties not to exceed $500 without prior Board
approval. Itemization shall be made by the Superintendent-CSBO of all monthly
expenses incurred and receipts shall be submitted to the Board for review and approval.

2. Insurance Benefits

The Board will provide the Superintendent-CSBO with the following benefits under the
District’s insurance plans:

a. Full-family health, dental, and long-term disability insurance coverage, as provided
under the programs effective in the District;

b. Term life insurance in accordance with the District’s life insurance policy employee
classifications, as provided under the program effective in the District; and

c. Liability insurance, as provided to other administrators, and in accordance with
Section 10-20.20 of The School Code.

2
478229v1





3. Vacation

The Superintendent-CSBO shall be entitled to paid vacation of twenty (20) working days
per contract year, to be used as mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent-CSBO and
Board. Vacation must be taken within the contract year, provided that any earned
unused vacation days may be carried over into the following contract year with the
approval of the Board. The Superintendent-CSBO shall also be entitled to all legal
school holidays observed by the District. Winter, Spring, and Summer recess periods
shall constitute working days unless specifically scheduled and credited toward the
vacation days listed above.

4. Sick Leave

The Superintendent-CSBO shall be granted sick leave, as defined in Section 24-6 of The
School Code, of seventeen (17) working days per contract year. Any accrued, unused
sick leave days may be accumulated to a maximum of three hundred sixty(360) days.
The Superintendent-CSBO shall not be entitled to payment for any accrued but unused
sick leave upon separation of employment from the District for any reason.

5. Personal Leave

The Superintendent-CSBO shall be granted personal leave of five (5) working days per
contract year. Any accrued, unused personal leave days shall be added to the
Superintendent-CSBOQO’s total accumulated sick leave. The Superintendent-CSBO shall
not be entitled to payment for any accrued but unused personal leave upon separation of
employment from the District for any reason.

6. Professional Meetings/Professional Development Activities/Membership Dues

The Board shall reimburse the Superintendent-CSBO for the cost (including reasonable
travel expenses) of appropriate professional development activities, including
participation in conferences, seminars, and workshops, and dues and membership fees
to relevant professional organizations. The Superintendent-CSBO shall be encouraged
to attend appropriate professional meetings and join appropriate professional
organizations. Upon proper substantiation and prior Board approval, such costs of
professional development activities and dues and membership fees shall be paid by the
Board.

7. Tuition Reimbursement

The Superintendent-CSBO shall be allocated a maximum amount of two thousand, five
hundred dollars ($2,500) per contract year for tuition reimbursement for graduate
coursework pre-approved by the Board.

C. POWERS AND DUTIES

1. Duties

The Superintendent-CSBO is the chief administrative officer of the School District. The

3
478229v1





Superintendent-CSBO is responsible for the effective operation of the District, general
administration of all instructional business or other operations of the District, and for
advising and making recommendations to the Board of Education with respect to such
activities. The specific job description duties are attached hereto as Appendix B.

2. Professional Activities

The Superintendent-CSBO shall devote her efforts to the business of the School District
and related professional activities. With the permission of the Board, the Superintendent-
CSBO may engage in consultative work, lecturing, writing activities, speaking
engagements, and other professional activities. The Superintendent-CSBO may not
jeopardize the functioning of the School District by any lengthy and conspicuous
absence for such professional activity.

D. STUDENT PERFORMANCE AND ACADEMIC IMPROVEMENT GOALS

The Superintendent-CSBO acknowledges that this multi-year Contract is a performance-
based contract which includes the goals and indicators of student performance and
academic improvement determined by the Board to measure the performance and
effectiveness of the Superintendent-CSBO as mandated under Section 5/10-23.8 of The
School Code. As part of the Superintendent-CSBQO’s annual performance evaluation, the
parties shall meet to review the Superintendent-CSBQO’s progress towards attainment of the
student performance and academic improvement goals established by the Board. The
Superintendent-CSBO’s performance goals for the 2015-2016 school year are set forth in
Appendix A of this Agreement.

The Board will review and assess the Superintendent-CSBO 's performance based upon the
performance goals set forth in Appendix A, and any other evaluation criteria established by
the Board. This Contract may be extended at the end of any contract year by mutual
agreement of the Board and Superintendent-CSBO if the student performance and
academic improvement goals set forth in Appendix A are successfully attained by the
Superintendent-CSBO based upon the Board's review and assessment of the
Superintendent-CSBO’s performance.

E. TERMINATION

1. This Employment Contract may be terminated by:
(a) Mutual agreement;
(b) Permanent disability (as defined below);
(c) Discharge for cause (as defined below);

(d) Resignation, provided, however, the Superintendent-CSBO shall provide the Board
at least six (6) months advance written notice of the resignation; or

(e) Death.

478229v1





2. Permanent Disability

The Board may terminate this Contract for reasons of permanent disability or incapacity
at any time after the Superintendent-CSBO has exhausted her accumulated sick leave
and vacation benefits or has been absent from her employment for a continuous period
of three (3) months or presents to the Board upon request a physician's statement
certifying that the Superintendent-CSBO is permanently disabled or incapacitated. Such
examination shall be performed by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its
branches, who is selected and paid by the Board. All obligations of the Board shall
cease upon written notice of termination for permanent disability or incapacity, provided
that the Superintendent-CSBO shall be entitled to a hearing before the Board if she so
requests. The Board reserves the right to require the Superintendent-CSBO to submit to
a medical examination, either physical or mental, whenever the Board deems the
Superintendent-CSBO disabled. Such examination shall be performed by a physician
licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, who is selected and paid by the Board.
The physician shall prepare a detailed report of the state of the Superintendent-CSBO’s
physical and/or mental health and submit it to the Board of Education and the
Superintendent-CSBO.

3. Discharge for Cause

Discharge for cause shall be for any serious misconduct, act, or failure to act by the
Superintendent-CSBO which is materially detrimental to the best interests of the School
District or for material breach of this Contract. Reasons for discharge for cause shall be
given in writing to the Superintendent-CSBO, who shall be entitled to notice and an
opportunity to request a hearing before the Board to discuss such causes. If the
Superintendent-CSBO chooses to be accompanied by legal counsel, she shall be
responsible for any costs involved. The Board hearing shall be conducted in closed
session.

4. Early Termination

Should the Superintendent-CSBO’s employment be terminated by the Board or the
Superintendent-CSBO prior to June 30, 2017, for reasons other than disability or death
under Section E.1. above, no further salary, payments, compensation or benefits shall
be paid or payable to the Superintendent-CSBO under this Contract after the date of
such termination.

F. EVALUATION

The Board shall review the Superintendent-CSBO’s performance no later than June 30 of
each contract year. The performance evaluation shall include, but not be limited to, the
Superintendent-CSBO’s progress toward the attainment of the student performance and
academic improvement goals set forth in Appendix A of the Agreement, administration of
personnel, communications with the Board, and other job description duties set forth in the
position job description attached as Appendix B, and such other evaluation criteria or
performance goals established by the Board. The Board shall provide its appraisal of the
Superintendent-CSBO’s performance to the Superintendent-CSBO in writing. The
Superintendent-CSBO shall be responsible for notifying the Board of the responsibility to

5
478229v1





evaluate her no later than the April Board meeting of each year. In addition, the
Superintendent-CSBO shall provide the Board with a self-evaluation of performance by the
May Board meeting of each year.

G. NOTICE

Any notice or communication permitted or required under this Contract shall be in writing
and shall become effective on the day of mailing thereof by first class mail, registered, or
certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to:

(a) If to the Board: Mr. Tim Kollar, School Board President
542 Abbotsford Road
Kenilworth, Il 60043

(b) If to the Superintendent-CSBO: Dr. Crystal LeRoy
6710 N. LaPorte
Lincolnwood, IL 60712

(or to the last known address of the Superintendent-CSBO contained in the official School
business records).

H. MISCELLANEQUS

1.

This Contract has been executed in the State of lllinois and shall be governed in
accordance with the laws of lllinois. If any portion of this Contract is deemed unlawful or
unenforceable, the remainder of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

Paragraph headings and numbers, and page numbers have been inserted for
convenience of reference only, and if there is any conflict between such heading or
numbers and the text of the Contract, the text shall control.

This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
considered an original, and all of which taken together shall be considered one and the
same instrument.

The Contract contains all the terms agreed upon by the parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Contract and supersedes all prior agreements, including the 2014—
2017 Business Services (CSBO)/Human Resources Manager's Employment Agreement,
and any other arrangements and communications between the parties concerning such
subject matter, whether oral or written.

Except as may otherwise be provided herein, no subsequent alteration, amendments,
change or addition to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced in
writing and duly authorized and signed by each of the parties.

The Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Superintendent-
CSBO, her successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and personal representatives, and
shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the Board, its successors, and assigns.

478229v1





IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract this __ day of
February, 2015.

SUPERINTENDENT-CSBO BOARD OF EDUCATION OF KENILWORTH
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

By: By:
Dr. Crystal LeRoy President

ATTEST:

By:

Secretary

478229v1





APPENDIX A

SUPERINTENDENT-CSBO’S PERFORMANCE GOALS FOR 2015-2016

The Superintendent-CSBO acknowledges that, pursuant to The School Code, Section 10-23.8,
this multi-year contract is subject to performance goals. As part of the annual evaluation
process set forth in paragraph F of this Agreement, the parties shall meet to review the
Superintendent-CSBO’s progress towards achievement of the performance goals. The
Superintendent-CSBO shall strive to develop and maintain excellent overall financial and
administrative management of the District, improve student performance and promote academic
improvement at the Joseph Sears School, and recruit, retain and foster an excellent faculty and
staff by the following methods, including but not limited to:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Provide overall administrative and educational leadership to the District to improve student
performance and promote academic improvement for all learners.

Indicators: Demonstrates progress towards positive trends in student achievement as
evidenced by standardized test data and other measures agreed upon by the Board and the
Superintendent-CSBO; demonstrates awareness and implements current research and best
practices, responds to external and internal “customer” needs; facilitates development and
implementation of long and short term educational goals for the District; organizes and leads
a planned program of curriculum evaluation and improvement; plans and oversees staff
development to support educational goals.

Maintain a positive working relationship with the Principal, Director of Student Services and
the Board of Education.

Indicators: Will provide adequate and timely meeting materials and background information;
assists in development, recommendation and administration of policies; works with the
Board to establish District long and short term goals; develops a monthly indicators
dashboard; contributes to a climate of teamwork.

Employ a highly qualified faculty/staff and encourage their professional development.

Indicators: Develops and implements sound personnel practices;, provides for the
systematic, organized evaluation of all faculty/staff by appropriate supervisors, delegates
both responsibility and authority to accountable administrative staff members to ensure their
professional development and public recognition, provides faculty/staff recognition for
contribution towards goals, recruits and maintains a highly qualified faculty/staff; involves the
faculty/staff in strategic planning; fosters team spirit; establishes internal communication
systems; plans for staff development; continues to assume the Human Resources Manager
role by facilitating all job vacancy postings, as well as updating and completing of job
descriptions.

Maximize resources available for instruction and demonstrate fiscal responsibility in
managing the ongoing strategic plan and fiscal operations of the District.

Indicators: Recommends and prepares appropriate budgets to the Board; ensures complete
financial controls/audit; obtains an unmodified annual District financial report without any
gualifications; regularly reports to the Board on District budget/finances; provides adequate

8

478229v1





5)

6)

data to support budgetary requests; seeks alternative funding sources; develops facility
management plans and procedures; supervises facility improvements; works with related
school organizations to facilitate fundraising; serves as the Administrative leader for the
building renovation development, planning and implementation;

Maintain a cooperative relationship with the community.

Indicators: Maintains support and respect of the community on the conduct of District
operations; provides appropriate and timely communication on educational issues and
demonstrates educational leadership to the community; works collaboratively with other
District public bodies (Police, Village, etc.); seeks input from the community; maintains good
media relations; is approachable by members of the community while redirecting them to
work through day-to-day issues with accountable staff; prepares an annual report to share
with the community.

Maintain timely and accurate compliance with required administrative, regulatory, and legal
obligations.

Indicators: Monitors and ensures District’s timely and accurate compliance with required
local, state, and federal statutory, administrative, and regulatory requirements, including
lllinois School Code, TRS, IMRF, ISBE, and PERA, solicits and obtains necessary guidance
and/or opinions regarding legal and regulatory compliance issues; provides direction and
oversight to ensure timely and comprehensive evaluation of District certified and non-
certified staff; advises Board of any legal or regulatory issues which could impact District
operations, funding, or financial condition; timely communicates and works effectively with
administrative and regulatory officials and District attorneys and consultants to address any
administrative, regulatory, or legal issues affecting the District.

Prior to March 31 of each year of this Agreement, the Board and Superintendent-CSBO will
reassess the Superintendent-CSBO’s performance goals and make appropriate revisions and
amendments thereto.

478229v1






Illinois State Board of Education
Christopher A. Koch, Ed.D., State Superintendent of Education 1/27/2015

School Business and Support Services

2015 Financial Profile Designation
Based On the 2013-2014 Annual Financial Report Data

County: Cook
District: Kenilworth SD 38
RCDT Code: 05-016-0380-02

1. Fund Balance To Revenue Ratio: Total Ratio Score 4.00
Total Sum of Fund Balance (P8,Cells C80, D80, F80 & 180 Funds 10, 20, 40, 70 + (50 & 80 if negative) 13,182,990.00 1.167 Weight 0.35
Total Sum of Direct Revenues (P7, Cell C8, D8, F8 & I8) Funds 10, 20, 40, & 70 11,291,198.00 Value 1.40

Less: Operating Debt Pledged to Other Funds (P8, Cell C53 thru D73 Minus Funds 10 & 20
2. Expenditures To Revenue Ratio: Total Ratio Score 4.00
Total Sum of Direct Expenditures (P7, Cell C17, D17, F17,117) Funds 10, 20 & 40 10,791,506.00 0.955 Adjustment 0.00
Total Sum of Direct Revenues (P7, Cell C8, D8, F8 & 18) Funds 10, 20, 40, & 70 11,291,198.00 Weight 0.35
Less: Operating Debt Pledged to Other Funds (P8, Cell C53 thru D73 Value 140

Possible Adjustment:

3. Days Cash On Hand: Total Days Score 4.00
Total Sum of Cash & Investments (P5, Cell C4, D4, F4,14 & C5, D5, F5 & I5 Funds 10, 20 40 & 70 13,147,393.00 438.59 Weight 0.10
Total Sum of Direct Expenditures (P7, Cell C17, D17, F17 & 117) Funds 10, 20, 40 divided by 360 29,976.41 Value 0.40

4. Percent of Short-Term Borrowing Maximum Remaining: Total Percent Score 4.00
Tax Anticipation Warrants Borrowed (P25, Cell F6-7 & F11) Funds 10, 20 & 40 0.00 100.00 Weight 0.10
EAV x 85% x Combined Tax Rates (P3, Cell J7 and J10) (.85 x EAV) x Sum of Combined Tax Rates 9,006,898.03 Value 0.40

5. Percent of Long-Term Debt Margin Remaining: Total Percent Score 3.00
Long-Term Debt Outstanding (P3, Cell H37) 8,985,000.00 57.55 Weight 0.10
Total Long-Term Debt Allowed (P3, Cell H31) 21,168,158.45 Value 0.30

Total Profile Score 3.90
Note:

* Estimated Total Profile Score may change based on information
Final score will be calculated by ISBE






THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To: Dr. Kelley Kalinich, Superintendent
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Business Services and Human Resources Manager
Date: February 9, 2015

Re:  Business Office and Human Resources Update

Accounts Pavable Review

The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills list or
require an explanation:

Explanation: Door and Hardware Equipment Replacement

Check Number: 131802 Check Type: Check Check Date: 01/20/2015 Vendor: AMBLDGSERV ~ American Building Services, LLC Check Total: 541552
Invoice Number Invoice Date PO Number Detail Description Chart of Account Number Detail Amount
4007161 1202412014 Cap Outlay-Equipment 20 2540 540 00 541552

Explanation: Tractor Replacement

Check Number: 1318068 Check Type: Check Check Date: 01/20/2015 Vendor: ATLASBOBCA Atlas Bobcat LLC Check Total: 32,417.00
Invoice Number Invoice Date PO Number Detail Description Chart of Account Number Detail Amount
Q43760 12/03/2014 Cap Outlay-Equipment 20 2540 540 00 32,417.00

Explanation: FY14 Annual Audit Services

Check Number: 131820 Check Type: Check Check Date: 01/20/2015 Vendor: EVANSMARSH  Evans, Marshall & Pease PC Check Total: 8,275.00
Invoice Number Invoice Date PO Number Detail Description Chart of Account Number Detail Amount
4712 11/30/2014 Board Audit Service 10231031805 8.275.00

Explanation: Special Education Cooperative Payment

Check Mumber. 131951 Check Type: Check Check Date: 01/20/2015  Vendor: NSSED Horthemn Suburban Special Education Check Totak 126,141.18
District
Invoice Number Invoice Date PO Mumber Detail Description Chart of Account Humber Detail Amount
150176 12192014 Spec Program Tuition 10 4120 600 00 42.000.80
15130 12182014 Spec Program Tuition 10 4120 600 00 81.820.72
15160 12192014 Spec Program Tuition 10 4120 600 00 141066

Monthly Financials - As of December 31, 2014
The Monthly Financial Reports from July 2014 - November 2014 have included Estimated Actuals

for 2013-14. Since the audit was completed in December 2014, the Monthly Financials now
reflect Actuals for 2013-14.

Monthly Financials - As of January 31, 2015

Due to the early February Board Meeting, the Monthly Financials and Investment reports for
January 2015 are not available. Typically, financial statements are available within 5-10 business
days after the month-end. Therefore, January 2015 financial reports will be presented at the
March 16t Board Meeting.

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org






Annual School District Financial Profile

In December 2014, the auditor presented a draft of the District’s 2014 Financial Profile. In
January 2015, the Illinois State Board of Education released the official school district financial
profile scores. As in prior years, Kenilworth School District 38 continues to maintain ISBE’s top
rating of Financial Recognition.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MSs. JULIA JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org






THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

Memo to: Board of Education

From: Dr. Crystal S. LeRoy, Business Services/ Human Resources Manager and
FOIA Officer

Date: February 9, 2015

Re: Freedom of Information Act Requests

The following Freedom of Information Act Requests have been received and responded to since
the last Regular Board of Education meeting;:

From Mr. Scott Reeder on January 7, 2015

The request was for the following on behalf of Mr. Scott Reeder:

1. Provisions within the district’s collective bargaining agreement providing for compensation (pay
and or benefits) for union officials while performing union-related activities.

2. The pay record of the employee(s) who receive this benefit.
In lieu of the actual documents, a statement of what annual financial benefits accorded union

leadership by the school district for union work would suffice.

The response was provided on January 14, 2015. It required time on the part of Dr. Kalinich, Ms.
Lascola and myself to research all appropriate documents requested.

From Ms. Crystal Davis from Image Systems & Business Solutions on January 13, 2015

The request was for the following on behalf of Image Systems & Business Solutions:

1. Copies of all active copier and printer lease agreements the District currently has as well as any
corresponding & active service agreements for the District's existing fleet of copiers and printers.

The response was provided on January 19, 2015. It required time on the part of Mr. Bialk and
myself to research all appropriate documents requested.

From Ms. Angela Caputo from the Chicago Tribune on January 15, 2015

The request was for the following on behalf of the Chicago Tribune:
1. Any district policies that outline the selection or oversight of private legal counsel.

2. Complete copies of all contracts or agreements between the district and private legal counsel
related to legal work paid for between 2010 and the present.

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org





3. Complete copies of all advertisements or solicitations as the district sought the aforementioned
private legal services.

4. Complete copies of all bids or proposals submitted by legal firms vying for that legal work.

The response was provided on January 23, 2015. It required time on the part of Dr. Kalinich and
myself to research all appropriate documents requested. The response was developed in
consultation with our legal counsel, Heidi Katz. The cost for the legal fees related to this
response will be posted in this memorandum when received.

From Ms. Janet L. Martin on December 5, 2015

The request was for information related to non-certified employees the following on behalf of
Ms. Janet L. Martin:

1. Job Title/Job Classification

2. Date of Hire

3. Job Description

4. Number of Days Worked in the School Year

5. Number of hours Worked Per Day

6. Entry Level Salary for New Employee

7. Current Salary for Existing Employee

8. Employee cost for insurance, including but not limited to: medical, dental, vision
9. Health Plan details - deductible, Out of cost to employee

10. HMO vs. PPO

11. Any and all other fringe benefits, indicating how much the employer pays and/or how much the
employee pays

12. Any other pay incentives, i.e. stipend, bonus, retirement, longevity, etc.
13. Job description for the certified school nurse and the substitute pay scale for all job positions.

The initial response was provided on December 15, 2014. A follow up response was provided on
December 23, 2014. It required time on the part of Dr. Kalinich and myself to research all
appropriate documents requested. The response was developed in consultation with our legal
counsel, Heidi Katz. The cost for the legal fees related to this response will be posted in this
memorandum when received

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MS. JULIA JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org






THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To:  Dr. Kelley M. Kalinich, Superintendent

From: Ms. Julia R. Jones, Director of Student Services

Date: February 9, 2015

RE:  Director of Student Services Report for the February 9, 2015 Kenilworth School District
No. 38 Board of Education Meeting

New Trier 8t Grade Individual Education Program (IEP) Articulations

Every winter, articulation meetings are held with the Sears Director of Student Services, the
Sears 8th Grade Student Services Teacher, the 8t grade student and their parents, related
services personnel and a New Trier representative from the special education department.
The purpose of the articulation meeting is to discuss student needs and adapt supports in
anticipation of the high school setting. District No. 38 meetings were held on Tuesday,
January 27t and Thursday, January 29th at the New Trier Northfield Campus. Following
their individual meeting, the student and parents were given tours and students received
New Trier memorabilia such as folders, pencils, etc.

504 Plan articulation meetings will be held after Spring Break with a similar format.
Academic Assistance for Junior High Students

This fall we discussed piloting an academic assistance center to provide additional support
to students at the Junior High level. Intervention has historically been provided during the
school day and Homework Center has been available during the lunch hour. This school
year we reintroduced formal math support and a writing center, both held during the lunch
hour. Attendance data has been tracked and is currently being reviewed to analyze how
often students are utilizing these services. This information will also be used to begin
planning for student supports for next school year.

Response to Intervention, Gifted/Enrichment, and Student Services

In the Strategic Plan it is suggested to hold a parent forum to discuss Response to
Intervention, which [ would like to schedule for this spring. I am also exploring options to
increase communication regarding the services and supports that are available for students
at Sears through an electronic format.

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org






THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To: Dr. Kelley Kalinich
From: Kendra Wallace
RE: Principal’s Update
Date:  February 9, 2014

1. Parent Visitation Day. February 6, 2015 parents of Kindergarten thru 5t grade students
engage in a revised Parent Visitation Day. Working with teachers, the desire to establish
a program that thoughtful engages parents in the classroom and does not disrupt the entire
day was generated. The purpose of the day was reviewed and piloting an alternative
format became an opportunity to create a unique and meaningful morning. The parent
visitations will focus on Kindergarten thru Fifth grade. We will gather feedback from
both parents, students and faculty and revisit the success of this format.

2. 8" grade. In an effort to assist the transition to New Trier and provide information to
children and parents, we will be launching an information session followed by a Question
and Answer session on February 6, 2015. Using the resources on the New Trier website,
all 8" graders and parents able to attend will have an opportunity to hear the same
message. New Trier will bring members of their Music/Arts Programs and both perform
and share programmatic information. On February 12, 2015, parents will have a chance to
meet with 8" grade teacher to asks questions regarding placement and programs before
the New Trier window closes.

3. Curriculum

a. English Language Arts continues the conversation around scope and sequence.
Working with Jessica Hockett, Junior High will begin the work of looking at and
revising a scope and sequence and expanding it into curriculum. With the
proposed merging of Language and Literature to English Language Arts this is a
timely professional development work session.

b. Mathematics: Junior High met to begin working on reviewing course offerings,
scope and sequence, needs and next steps. Elementary Scope and Sequence is
being refined and we will begin a review and revisit of the implementation of
Math in Focus and differentiation in grades 4™ and 5™ grades specifically.

¢. Science: Elementary continues to explore Science Companion Units. Three grade
levels have completed or are in the process of exploring a unit. Feedback has
been positive so far and we are acquiring units from other publishers to conduct a
materials comparison. The articulation continuum for Kindergarten through
eighth grade was completed for one field of study and we will meet again in
March to continue the work.

d. Summer: We will begin to look at professional development and planning needs
for the summer. The goal is to keep July professional development free.

4. Master Schedule/ Bell Schedule - Highlights.

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org






a. Committee Members/Collaborators: Blythe Szafoni, Jennifer Peterson, Kathy
Lowell, Jeff Gerdin, Justyna Kalinowska, Anne Trueman, RJ Bialk, Michelle
Harradine, Toula Sideris and Julia Jones

b. In an effort to create a schedule that provides balance in the day, the committee
has established one alternate Elementary Schedule and a few options for the
Junior High. This process has proven to be more difficult than initially anticipated
because of the need to balance facilities and instructional resources. The goal
remains to infuse science, social and emotional learning and social science into
the weekly schedule for elementary classrooms. Additionally, the goal is to create
instructional blocks that are consistent and allow instructional partnership between
teachers to best support learners. The proposed schedule also reduces the need to
pull students from core instruction for electives and/or RTI.

c. The Junior High schedule still remains a challenge to balance and a few renditions
will be offered for staff review. The proposal will involve a multiple year roll out.
The goal is to balance instructional minutes with best practice and research based
strategies. This involves increasing math instruction to 50-60 minute blocks of
time. In addition creating an RTI/Enrichment/Study Hall block to ensure that
differentiation and support for all learners is occurring. Balancing this section
will create an opportunity for students to work with band/orchestra in the scope of
the school day.

d. Professional Development: one of the opportunities of interest is creating an early
release day for professional development, common planning and curriculum work.
In lieu of late starts the suggestion has been to look at early release.

e. Time: In order to create a schedule that places balance, core curriculum,
enrichment and specials, there is a need to find additional time. One look is at
capturing 10-15 minutes out of the lunch period during the first year roll out and
an earlier start for Junior High in the second phase. What will be asked of the
Board is the approval to gather 15 minutes our of the lunch block for the 2015-16
school year.

5. MAP testing. The second administration of the MAP testing is in process. Final make up
tests are being administered. The window will close and we will hold data meetings with
grade levels. This data will be used to assist in identifying gap analysis for students for
RTI and for teaching and learning. We administered the MAP for the first time to Second
Grade. This will give our Second grade students the first benchmark data.

6. PARCC

a. The test will involve 13-14 hours of students for students Grade 3-8. This test is
divided into the Performance Based Assessment (PBA) in March and the End of
Year test in May. Given the nature of the test, the recommendation for
administration is to give one section of the assessment a day. The administration
of the park will impact 2 weeks of instruction. The test is time and will be
administered on an iPad.

b. We are examining options regarding how we will share this information with
parents.

c. share information with parents

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org





d. We are monitoring the new and frequent updates that are coming from the State
and the PARCC committee
e. Here is the link to practice tests: 3" Grade thru 8" Grade Practice Tests

DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www.kenilworth38.org



http://parcc.pearson.com/practice-tests/




Instructional Facilitator KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

Instructional Facilitator

Instructional Facilitator

Primary Function: Shall perform such duties and responsibilities associated with facilitating
and guiding curriculum and instructional initiatives, managing of the curriculum renewal
process and professional development program, and supporting and monitoring instruction
and curriculum guidelines as are required by the Illinois School Code and the Illinois State Board
of Education. Directly Responsible to: Principal

The Instructional Facilitator as a Professional

A.

B.

Facilitator shall affirm and accept their responsibility to practice their profession
according to the highest ethical standards.

Facilitator shall demonstrate knowledge in in the principles of learning,
instructional organization, curriculum management and best practice in instruction
and child development theory.

The Facilitator as an Instructional Leader

A.

B.

Work as part of the professional development committees, building leadership team
and with the building Principal and Director of Student Services.

Schedule, facilitate and support various stages of curriculum renewal process within
content and follow up support with grade level teams/departments

Research resources and make recommendations regarding strategies and materials
during curriculum renewal, revise and revisit strategies.

Manage professional support for roll out of materials including professional
development

Meet regularly with the principal.

Facilitator as a professional

The Instructional Facilitator is knowledgeable in instructional practices, formative and
summative assessment alighment and CCSS. For example, their will be a need to facilitate
teachers through the unpacking of standards, monitoring of scope and sequence and
culminate in curriculum renewal. The Instructional Facilitator is also knowledgeable in the
principles of learning, habits of mind and 21st century standards and effectively applies
them. The Instructional Facilitator:

A.

Experienced in designing, implementation and revision of scope and sequence of the
curriculum at the appropriate level and relates plans to clearly defined objectives
which are consistent with District curriculum and CCSS

Is receptive to new ideas and demonstrates evidence of professional growth and
development and leading it for others

Responds constructively to recommendations made in periodic performance
evaluations

Is willing to work and give additional time to teahcers outside of regular hours

Assumes a reasonable share of the responsibility for instilling a learning
environment within the school

Selects appropriate channels for resolving concerns and problems





Page 2 of 2

Establishes relationships with colleagues and administration which reflect mutual
respect

Demonstrates a willingness to assume additional building and/or District-related
responsibilities.

In Addition, the Instructional Facilitator will:

Attend and participate in all regularly-scheduled professional and other meetings,
including: institutes, workshops, and staff meetings as requested by the
Superintendent, Principal, or immediate supervisor

Work to maintain positive relationships with immediate colleagues and fully
participate in all meetings, initiatives and expectations

K. Demonstrate consistency in attendance patterns by having a good attendance record

O.

P.

Practice punctual arrival and departure from the building, classes, and committee
meetings

. Practice punctual, timely, and accurate completion of required records and reports

Be knowledgeable of and follow all student/parent and personnel policies and
procedures

Uses planning time appropriately for professional and personal needs

Provide clear plans to enable substitute Instructional Facilitators to maintain

Communication Expectations:

The Instructional Facilitator practices timely and appropriate communication techniques in
dealing with teachers and administrators. The Instructional Facilitator:

A.

B.

C.

Provides timely communication and updates of Professional Development Work

Effectively manages calendar of activities, pull outs, plannings, meetings and
learning lunches and calendars accordingly

Expectations, resources and work as associated with the Curriculum Renewal and
Strategic Plan

Specific considerations for job posting description will include:

Qualities expected of the applicant are as follows:

1. 5 or more years teaching in a classroom.

2. Extensive knowledge of Common Core State Standards, curriculum
alignment, data and vetting instructional materials

3. Experience leading, designing and monitoring professional development
4. Experience writing, reviewing, aligning and monitoring assessments

5. Willingness to work with teacher groups and an understanding of the
standards of professionalism in working with adult groups

6. An understanding of Adult Learning theory and Facilitation skills

7. Commitment to continuous personal and professional growth.

8. Be able to effectively use computers, software, and technology in a classroom
setting.










Kenilworth School District No. 38 4:30

Operational Services

Revenue and Investments

Revenue

The Superintendent or designee is responsible for making all claims for property tax revenue, State Aid,
special state funds for specific programs, federal funds, and categorical grants.

Investments

The Board of Education shall designate a District Treasurer. In collaboration with the Chief School
Business Official, t+he District Treasurer shall act as the chief investment officer for the District, and
shall be responsible for establishing the internal controls and written procedures for the operation of the
investment program. The District Treasurer shall invest money that is not required for current operations,
in accordance with this policy and State law.

The District Treasurer shall use the standard of prudence when making investment decisions. He/She
shall use the judgment and care, under circumstances when prevailing, that persons of prudence,
discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for
investment, considering the safety of their capital as well as its probable income.

Investment Objectives

The objectives for the School District’s investment activities are:

1. Safety of Principal - Every investment is made with safety as the primary and over-riding concern.
Each investment transaction shall ensure that capital loss, whether from credit or market risk, is
avoided.

2. Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall provide sufficient liquidity to pay District obligations as
they become due. In this regard, the maturity and marketability of investments shall be considered.

3. Rate of Return - The highest return on investments is sought, consistent with the preservation of
principal and prudent investment principles.

4. Diversification - The investment portfolio is diversified as to financial instruments and investments,
as appropriate to the nature, purpose, and amount of funds.

Authorized Investments

The Board of Education will annually review the District’s investment objectives and strategies. The
District Treasurer may invest any District funds:

1. Inbonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities now or hereinafter
issued, which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America as to
principal and interest.

2. Inbonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its
agencies, and its instrumentalities.

The term “agencies of the United States of America” includes: (i) the federal land banks, federal
intermediate credit banks, banks for cooperative, federal farm credit banks, or any other entity

lof5
Presented 02-09-15
Replacing former policy 4:30





10.

authorized to issue debt obligations under the Farm Credit Act of 1971 and Acts amendatory
thereto; (ii) the federal home loan banks and the federal home loan mortgage corporation; and
(iii) any other agency created by Act of Congress.

In interest-bearing savings accounts, interest-bearing certificates of deposit or interest-bearing time
deposits or any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the
Illinois Banking Act.

In short term obligations of corporations organized in the United States with assets exceeding
$500,000,000 if (i) such obligations are rated at the time of purchase at one of the 3 highest
classifications established by at least 2 standard rating services and which mature not later than 270
days from the date of purchase, (ii) such purchases do not exceed 10% of the corporation’s
outstanding obligations and (iii) no more than one-third of the public agency’s funds may be
invested in short term obligations of corporations.

In money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, provided that
the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is limited to obligations described in paragraph
(1) and (2) of this subsection and to agreements to repurchase such obligations.

In short term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association or in shares or
other forms of securities legally issuable by savings banks or savings and loan associations
incorporated under the laws of the United States. Investments may be made only in those savings
banks or savings and loan associations the shares, or investment certificates of which are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Any such securities may be purchased at the offering or
market price thereof at the time of such purchase. All such securities so purchased shall mature or
be redeemable on a date or dates prior to the time when, in the judgment of the School Treasurer,
the public funds so invested will be required for expenditure by such public agency or its governing
authority.

In dividend-bearing share accounts, share certificate accounts or class of share accounts of a credit
union chartered under the laws of this State or the laws of the United States; provided, however, the
principal office of any such credit union must be located within the State of lllinois. Investments
may be made only in those credit unions the accounts of which are insured by applicable law.

In a Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool created under Section 17 of the State Treasurer Act. Any
public agency may also invest any public funds in a fund managed, operated, and administered by a
bank, subsidiary of a bank, or subsidiary of a bank holding company or use the services of such an
entity to hold and invest or advise regarding the investment of public funds.

In the Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus.

In repurchase agreements of government securities having the meaning set out in the Government
Securities Act of 1986 subject to the provisions of said Act and the regulations issued there under.
The government securities, unless registered or inscribed in the name of the public agency, shall be
purchased through banks or trust companies authorized to do business in the State of Illinois.

Except for repurchase agreements of government securities which are subject to the Government
Securities Act of 1986, no public agency may purchase or invest in instruments which constitute
repurchase agreements, and no financial institution may enter into such an agreement with or on
behalf of any public agency unless the instrument and transaction meet the following requirements:

a. The securities, unless registered or inscribed in the name of public agency, are purchased
through banks or trust companies authorized to do business in the State of Illinois.

20f5
Presented 02-09-15
Replacing former policy 4:30





The District Treasurer, after ascertaining which firm will give the most favorable rate of
interest, directs the custodial bank to “purchase” specified securities from a designated
institution. The “custodial bank™ is the bank or trust company, or agency of government,
which acts for the public agency in connection repurchase agreements involving the investment
of funds by the public agency. The State Treasurer may act as custodial bank for public
agencies executing repurchase agreements.

A custodial bank must be a member bank of the Federal Reserve System or maintain accounts
with member banks. All transfers of book-entry securities must be accomplished on a Reserve
Bank’s computer records through a member bank of the Federal Reserve System. These
securities must be credited to the public agency on the records of the custodial bank and the
transaction must be confirmed in writing to the public agency by the custodial bank.

Trading partners shall be limited to banks or trust companies authorized to do business in the
State of Illinois or to registered primary reporting dealers.

The security interest must be perfected.

The public agency enters into a written master repurchase agreement which outlines the basic
responsibilities and liabilities of both buyer and seller.

Agreements shall be for periods of 330 days or less.

The District Treasurer informs the custodial bank in writing of the maturity details of the
repurchase agreement.

The custodial bank must take delivery of and maintain the securities in its custody for the
account of the public agency and confirm the transaction in writing to the public agency. The
Custodial Undertaking shall provide that the custodian takes possession of the securities
exclusively for the public agency; that the securities are free of any claims against the trading
partner; and any claims by the custodian are subordinate to the public agency’s claims to rights
to those securities.

The obligations purchased by a public agency may only be sold or presented for redemption or
payment by the fiscal agent bank or trust company holding the obligations upon the written
instruction of the School Treasurer.

The custodial bank shall be liable to the public agency for any monetary loss suffered by the
public agency due to the failure of the custodial bank to take and maintain possession of such
securities.

In any investment as authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act, and Acts amendatory thereto.
Paragraph 11 supercedes paragraphs 1-10 and controls in the event of conflict.

Investments may be made only in banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
unless the District enters into an agreement with the institution requiring any funds not insured to be
collateralized as provided below.

Selection of Depositories, Investment Managers, Dealers, and Brokers

The District Treasurer shall establish a list of authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and
brokers based upon the creditworthiness, reputation, minimum capital requirements, qualifications under
State law, as well as a long history of dealing with public fund entities.

3of5
Presented 02-09-15
Replacing former policy 4:30





In order to be an authorized depository, each institution must submit copies of the last 2 sworn statements
of resources and liabilities or reports of examination, which the institution is required to furnish to the
appropriate state or federal agency. Each institution designated as a depository shall, while acting as such
depository, furnish the District with a copy of all statements of resources and liabilities or all reports of
examination, which it is required to furnish to the appropriate state or federal agency.

All banks used as depositories for School District funds shall be approved by the Board of Education, and
shall meet the criteria of the Public Funds Deposit Act. Persons authorized to sign checks shall be
approved by the Board of Education. At least one of the signers shall be the District Treasurer except for
individual School Activity Fund Accounts.

Collateral Requirements

All amounts deposited or invested with financial institutions in excess of any insurance limit shall be
collateralized by securities eligible for District investment or any other high-quality, interest-bearing
security rated at least AA/Aa by one or more standard rating services to include Standard & Poor’s,
Moody’s, or Fitch. The Board or the District Treasurer may at any time declare any particular security
ineligible to qualify as collateral when, in the public agency's judgment, it is deemed desirable to do so.
The market value of the pledged securities shall equal or exceed the portion of the deposit requiring
collateralization. The School Treasurer shall determine other collateral requirements.

Safekeeping and Custody Arrangements

The preferred method for safekeeping is to have securities registered in the District’s name and held by a
third-party custodian. Safekeeping practices should qualify for the General Accounting Standards
Board’s Statement III, Category I, the highest recognized safekeeping procedures.

Controls Report

The District Treasurer shall establish a system of internal controls and written operational procedures to
prevent losses arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent
employee action.

The District Treasurer shall provide a quarterly investment report to the Board. The report will:

(1) assess whether the investment portfolio is meeting the District’s investment objectives, (2) identify
each security by class or type, book value, income earned, and market value, (3) identify those institutions
providing investment services to the District, and (4) include any other relevant information. The
investment portfolio’s performance shall be measured by appropriate and creditable industry standards for
the investment type.

The School Board shall determine, after receiving the Superintendent’s recommendation, which fund is in
most need of interest income and what unrestricted interest is available for transfer, and, by resolution
enacted before June 30 of each year, direct the District Treasurer to execute any transfers of any
unrestricted interest accordingly.

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

The School Board and District officials will avoid any investment transactions or practice that in
appearance or fact might impair public confidence. Board Members are bound by the Board Member
Conflict of Interest Policy 2:100. No District employee having influence on the District’s investment
decisions shall:

1. have any interest, directly or indirectly, in any investments in which the District is authorized to
invest;

4 of 5
Presented 02-09-15
Replacing former policy 4:30





2. have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the sellers, sponsors, or managers of those investments;

3. receive in any manner, compensation of any kind from any investments in which the agency is
authorized to invest.

LEGAL REF.: 30 ILCS 235/1 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/8-7, 5/17-1, and 5/17-11.

CROSS REF-.: 2:100 (Board Member Conflict of Interest), 4:10 (Fiscal and Business
Management)

50f5
Presented 02-09-15
Replacing former policy 4:30






Kenilworth School District No. 38 8:30

Community Relations

Visitors to and Conduct on School Property

The following definitions apply to this policy:

School property - District and school buildings, grounds, and parking areas; vehicles used
for school purposes; and any location used for a School Board meeting, school athletic event,
or other school-sponsored event.

Visitor - Any person other than an enrolled student or District employee.

All visitors to school property are required to report to the Principal’s office and receive permission to
remain on school property. All visitors must provide a state or federal issued identification, and wear
a visitor’s badge. When leaving the school, visitors must return their badge. On those occasions when
large groups of parents and friends are invited onto school property or during some athletic events for
viewing, visitors are not required to sign in but must follow school officials’ instructions. Persons on
school property without permission will be directed to leave and may be subject to criminal
prosecution.

Except as provided in the next paragraph, any person wishing to confer with a faculty or staff member
should contact that faculty or staff member by telephone or email to make an appointment.
Conferences with teachers are held, to the extent possible, outside school hours or during the
teacher’s conference/preparation period.

Requests to access the school building, facility, and/or educational program, or to interview personnel
or a student for purposes of assessing the student’s special education needs, should be made with the
Director of Student Services. Access shall be facilitated according to guidelines from the
Superintendent or designee.

The School District expects mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct among all people on school
property or at a school event. No person on school property or at a school event (including visitors,
students, and employees) shall perform any of the following acts:

1. Strike, injure, threaten, harass, or intimidate a staff member, a Board member, sports official
or coach, or any other person.

Behave in an unsportsmanlike manner, or use vulgar or obscene language.

Unless specifically permitted by State law, possess a weapon, any object that can reasonably
be considered a weapon or looks like a weapon, or any dangerous device.

Damage or threaten to damage another’s property.

Damage or deface school property.

Violate any Illinois law, or village or county ordinance.

Smoke or otherwise use tobacco and electronic cigarette products.

Consume, possess, distribute, or be under the influence of an alcoholic beverage or illegal drug.

© © N o g &

Use or possess medical cannabis.

10. Impede, delay, disrupt, or otherwise interfere with any school activity or function (including
using cellular phones in a disruptive manner).

8:30 Page 1 of 3
Presented 02-09-15





11. Enter upon any portion of school premises at any time for purposes other than those that are
lawful and authorized by the Board.

12. Operate a motor vehicle: (a) in a risky manner, (b) in excess of 20 miles per hour, or (c) in
violation of an authorized District employee’s directive.

14.13.Violate other District policies or regulations, or a directive from an authorized security
officer or District employee.

15.14.Engage in any conduct that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the District or a
School function.

Convicted Child Sex Offender

State law prohibits a child sex offender from being present on school property or loitering within 500
feet of school property when persons under the age of 18 are present, unless the offender is:

1. A parent/guardian of a student attending the school and has notified the Principal of his or her
presence at the school for the purpose of: (i) attending a conference at the school with school
personnel to discuss the progress of his or her child academically or socially, (ii) participating
in child review conferences in which evaluation and placement decisions may be made with
respect to his or her child regarding special education services, or (iii) attending conferences
to discuss other student issues concerning his or her child such as retention and promotion; or

2. Has permission to be present from the Board, Superintendent, or Superintendent’s designee.
If permission is granted, the Superintendent or Board President shall provide the details of the
offender’s upcoming visit to the Principal.

In all cases, the Superintendent, or designee who is a certified employee, shall supervise a child sex
offender whenever the offender is in a child’s vicinity.

Exclusive Bargaining Representative Agent

Authorized agents of an exclusive bargaining representative, upon notifying the Principal’s office,
may meet with a school employee (or group of employees) in the school building during free-times of
such employees.

Enforcement

Any faculty or staff member may request identification from any person on school property; refusal to
provide such information is a criminal act. The Principal or designee shall seek the immediate
removal of any person who refuses to provide requested identification.

Any person who engages in conduct prohibited by this policy may be ejected from school property.
The person is also subject to being denied admission to school events or meetings for up to one
calendar year.

Procedures to Deny Future Admission to School Events or Meetings

Before any person may be denied admission to school events or meetings as provided in this policy,
the person has a right to a hearing before the Board. The Superintendent may refuse the person
admission pending such hearing. The Superintendent or designee must provide the person with a
hearing notice, delivered or sent by certified mail with return receipt requested, at least 10 days before
the Board hearing date. The hearing notice must contain:

1. The date, time, and place of the Board hearing;
2. A description of the prohibited conduct;

8:30 Page 2 of 3
Presented 02-09-15





3. The proposed time period that admission to school events will be denied; and
4. Instructions on how to waive a hearing.

LEGAL REF.: Nuding v. Cerro Gordo Community Unit School Dist., 730 N.E.2d 96 (lll.App.4,
2000).
Pro-Children Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. §7181 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.5b, 5/24-24, and 5/24-25.
410 ILCS 130/, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program.
430 ILCS 66/, Firearm Concealed Carry Act.
720 ILCS 5/11-9.3.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety), 5:50 (Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; Tobacco Prohibition),
6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 6:250 (Community Resource
Persons and Volunteers), 7:190 (Student Discipline), 8:20 (Community Use of
School Facilities)

8:30 Page 3 of 3
Presented 02-09-15





